
29 November 2013 

Mr Andrew Mahar 
President 
Civil Contractors Federation, Victorian Branch 
Level1/322 Glenferrie Road 
MALVERN VIC 3144 

Dear Mr Mahar, 

FairWork 
Commission 

Civil Contractors Federation Victorian Branch Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 
2012 • [FR2012/312] 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Civil Contractors Federation Victorian Branch 
(the reporting unit). The documents were lodged with Fair Work Commission (FWC) on 25 
January 2013. 

The financial report has now been filed. This financial report was filed based on a preliminary 
review. Please note that the reporting unit financial report for the year ending 30 June 2013 may 
be subject to a full compliance audit. 

I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. You are 
not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged. The FWC will confirm 
these concerns have been addressed prior to filing next year's report. 

Documents must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission within 14 days of General Meeting 
Section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 states that the full report and 
the designated officer's certificate are required to be lodged with the FWC within 14 days of the 
meeting of members. The Designated Officer's Certificate indicates that this meeting occurred 
on 16 October 2012. If this is correct the full report should have been lodged with the FWC by 30 
October 2012. 

The full report was lodged on 25 January 2013. 

Please note that in future financial year's requests for extension of lodgement of financial reports 
and the designated officer's certificate must be made prior to required date of lodgement. 

Revenue recognition 
The accounting standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements paragraph 117 and 
AASB 118 Revenue paragraph 35(a) requires that the entity must disclose the measurement 
basis or bases used in recognising revenue. The accounting policy for membership contribution 
has not been disclosed. 

Changes to the legislation and reporting guidelines 

I note with the change of legislation, references to Fair Work Australia will need to be updated to 
the Fair Work Commission. 

Additionally, a third edition to the General Manager's s.253 reporting guidelines was gazetted on 
26 June 2013. These guidelines will apply to all financial reports that end on or after 30 June 
2013. Fair Work Commission has also developed a model set of financial statement for the 2012-
2013 financial year. There is no requirement to use this model but it may be a useful resource to 
ensure compliance with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the s.253 reporting 
guidelines and the Australian Accounting Standards. 

11 Exhibition Street Email : orqs@fwc.gov.au 
Melbourne Vic 3000 Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne VIC 3001 



The guidelines and model financial statements are available on the website here: 
http://www.fwc.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfrguidelines#finance 

As you have already lodged your 2013 financial report, based on the contents of this letter, if you 
believe that some information may not have been included in this financial report, please send 
me any addition information and I will add it to your file. 

As stated previously, this financial report was filed based on a preliminary review. The financial 
report for the year ending 30 June 2013 may be subject to a full compliance audit. 

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on (03) 8661 7886 or via email at 
joanne.fenwick@fwc.gov.au. 

Joanne Fenwick 
Financial Reporting Specialist 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS 
FEDERATION 

23rd January 2013 

Mr Robert Pfeiffer 
Senior Adviser 

JAS~ANZ 
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Regulatory Compliance Branch 
Fair Work Commission 
GPO Box 1994 
MELBOURNE VIC 3001 

Dear Mr Pfeiffer, 

Re: Failure to lodge audited financial report- (FR2012/312) 

CCFVICTORIAN BRANCH 
ABN 97 341 352 156 

Level I 
322 Glenferrie Road 

Malvern,VIC 3144 

p (03) 9822 0900 
F (03) 9822 0022 

F ccfvic@civilcontactors.com 

www.civi lcontractorsvic.com 

We are in receipt of your letter dated 22"d January 2013 re the above and wish to advise that due to 
major staff changes over the past six months that the failure to lodge the audited financial report was a 
complete oversight. 

We hereby lodge herewith our completed audited financial report noting that due to a lack of a quorum 
for the Annual General Meeting scheduled for Wednesday 51

h September, 2012 this meeting was then 
re-scheduled on Tuesday 161

h October, 2012. 

Please find attached the following: 

• Notice of Annual General Meeting 2012 
• Annual General Meeting Agenda 2012 
• Annual General Meeting- Order of Proceedings 2012 
• Minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting (2011) 
• Minutes ofthe Annual General Meeting 2012 
• Certificate of Designated Officer 

• Financial Report 2012 including Auditor's Report 

• Annual Report 2012 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any further concerns. 

Yours sincerely, 

Chief Executive Officer 

OFFICES IN New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland, South Australia, Western Australia, Tasmania, Northern Territory, Australian Capital Territory. 

Constru,ting Australia's Infrastructure 



Civil Contractors Federation 
(Victorian Branch) 

2012 Annual General Meeting Notice 

Wednesday, 5th September, 2012 

14th August 2012 

Dear Member 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the Rules of the Federation that the Annual General 
Meeting of Members of the Civil Contractors Federation (Victorian Branch) is to be held on 
Wednesday 5th September, 2012. 

Meeting details are set out below and the Agenda for the meeting is attached. Also attached 
are the Minutes of the 2011 Annual General Meeting and the 2011/2012 Annual Report 
which includes the full financial reports and Auditor's Report for the year ended 301

h June, 
2012. These documents will also be available to Members at the AGM for approval. 

• Date: 
• Time: 
• Venue: 

Wednesday, 5th September, 2012 
9.00am following the Contractor Breakfast 'Where the Economy is Heading' 
Leonda By The Yarra 
Wallen Road, Hawthorn Vic 3122 
Melway: Map 45: A- 11 

The AGM will be held as part of the Metro Breakfast Meeting on 51
h September 2012. 

Attachments: 
• Meeting Agenda 
• Minutes of 2011 Annual General Meeting 
• 2011/12 Annual Report including financial reports and Auditor's report. 

If you haven't received these documents, you can obtain them by: 
• accessing our website at www.civilcontractors.com (under Victoria/Annual Meeting) ; or 
• telephoning Samantha Orsino on 9819 5170 and ask her to post them to you. 

I look forward to seeing you at the Annual General Meeting. 

Yours sincerely 

John Stewart 
Chief Executive Officer 

K:ICCF Main\(1) Civil Contractors Federation\1.0 Victorian Branch\1.0.2 Executive Committee\1.0.2.2.1 Annual General Meeting\AGM 201212012 Annual General 
Meeting Notice 5th Sep 12.doc 



Civil Contractors Federation 
(Victorian Branch) 

2012 Annual General Meeting 

Tuesday 16th October, 2012 
Following the October Board Meeting 

Level 1, 322 Glenferrie Road Malvern 

Agenda 

1. Welcome 

2. Apologies 

3. Adoption of Minutes of 2011 Annual General Meeting 

4. President's (Annual) Report 

5. Acceptance of Annual Accounts 

6. Appointment of Auditor 

7. Appointment of Returning Officers 

8. Declaration of Office Bearers 

9. General Business 



Annual General Meeting 

Level 1, 322 Glenferrie Road Malvern 

16th October 2012 

Order of Proceedings for AGM Agenda Items 

Notice of Meeting 

Welcome by President: 
• Good morning ladies and gentlemen and thank you for joining us at 

the 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Victorian Branch of the 
Civil Contractors Federation. 

• The Notice of Meeting has been circulated to all the members of the 
Branch and with your agreement, I propose to take it as read. 

• Is that agreed? 

Item 1: Apologies 

President: 
• We have received apologies from: 

lan Sowerby ............................... . 
Andrew Simpson ................... ..... . 
John Plum ridge ... ......... ... ........... . 
Marcus Van Enk ...... ........ .. ..... .... . 

• Are there any other apologies? 

Sure Constructions 
Simpson Construction 
Maw Civil 
JHL Civil 

• Can I have a mover of the motion to receive the apologies? 
• Is there a seconder of the motion? 
• I will now put the motion: 

o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• I declare the motion carried. 

Page 1 of4 



Item 2: Adoption of Minutes of the Previous Annual General 
Meeting 

President: 
• Item 2 of the Notice of Meeting is to approve the Minutes of the 

previous Annual General Meeting, held on 7 September 2011. 
• Are there any comments or questions in relation to the Minutes? 

President: 
• Can I have a motion that the Minutes of the previous Annual 

General Meeting held on 7 September 2011 and circulated to all 
members of the Branch, be accepted as a true and correct record of 
the proceedings of that meeting. 

• Is there a seconder to the motion? 
• I will now put the motion: 

o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• I declare the motion carried. 

Item 3: President's (Annual) Report 

President: 
• I have much pleasure in formally presenting the Annual Report to 
the meeting, which has been circulated to all Members. I will make a 
few comments on the report. 

(President presents brief report) 
• I move that the Annual Report be received. 
• Is there a seconder? 
• Is there any discussion on the Annual Report? 
• I will now put the motion that the Annual Report be received : 

o Those in favour? 
o Those Against? 

• I declare the motion carried. 

Item 4: Presentation of 2011/12 Annual Statement of Accounts 

President: 
• We will now proceed to deal with Item 4 on the Notice of Meeting 

which is to receive and consider the Branch's Annual Statement of 
Accounts. All Members will have received with their Notice of 
Meeting a copy of the accounts of the Branch containing the Report 
of the Branch Board, the Statement of Financial Position and the 
Independent Auditor's Report. 

Page 2 of 4 



• Can I have a motion that the Audited Financial Statement for the 
year ending 30 June, 2012 be accepted. 

• Is there a seconder to the motion? 
• The meeting is now open for comments and questions on the 

Annual Accounts. 

President: 
• I will now put the motion that the Audited Financial Statement for 

the year ending 30 June, 2012 be accepted. 
o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• I declare the motion carried. 

Item 5: Appointment of Auditor 

President: 
• Item 5 on the Notice of Meeting deals with the appointment of the 

Auditor. 
• It is recommended that the current Auditor, Michael Shulman of 

Stannards Accountants and Advisors Pty Ltd, be re-appointed. 
• Is someone prepared to move that Michael Shulman of Stannards 

Accounts and Advisors Pty Ltd be appointed as Auditor for the 
2012/13 financial year? 

• Is there a seconder? 
o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• The motion is carried. 

Item 6: Appointment of Returning Officers 

President: 
• Notwithstanding that the Australian Electoral Commission conducts 

our elections, the Federation's Constitution requires the 
appointment of an Honorary Returning Officer and two Honorary 
Assistant Returning Officers: 
~ who need not necessarily be Members of the CCF; and 
~ who must not be a CCF employee or a Branch Board Member. 

• Discussions have occurred with three people regarding their 
preparedness to accept nomination for one of these positions. 

• I therefore move that Ken Edgley be appointed as Honorary 
Returning Officer and Adrian Fuller and Peter Maguire as Honorary 
Assistant Returning Officers for 2012/13. 

• Is there a seconder? 
• Are there any other nominations? 
• I propose to put the motion that Ken Edgley be appointed as 

Honorary Returning Officer and Adrian Fuller and Peter Maguire as 
Honorary Assistant Returning Officers for 2012/13. 

Page 3 of4 



o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• I declare the motion carried . 

Item 7: Declaration of Office Bearers 

President: 
• The Notice of Meeting contains under Item 7 the declaration of the 

Returning Officer of the elections for the 2011/12 Branch Board. 
• Congratulations to all of those Members who have agreed to serve 

on the Board for the 2012/13 year. Your willingness to contribute to 
the governance of the Branch is very much appreciated. 

• I also wish to thank retiring Board Members in Tony Croagh (Fulton 
Hogan) and Rod Watson (Cut and Fill) for their service on the 
Board, and in doing so I am pleased to welcome to the Board their 
successors in Glenn Johnston (Fulton Hogan) and Sophie Brown 
(Cut and Fill). 

• Would someone like to move that the Returning Officer's 
Declaration be noted? 

• Is there a seconder? 
o Those in favour? 
o Those against? 

• The motion is carried. 

Item 8: General Business 

President 
• The last item on the Notice of Meeting is General Business. 
• Is there any General Business? 

• Deal with any items of General Business. 

Closure 

President: 
• As there are no further items of business, may I thank you all for 

attending this, the 2012 Annual General Meeting of the Victorian 
Branch of the Civil Contractors Federation, which I now close. 

Page 4 of4 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS 
FEDERATION 

Annual General Meeting 

Held on Tuesday 7th September 2011 @ 9.00am 
at The Manning ham Function Centre 

Doncaster Road, Doncaster 

Minutes of Meeting 

Present: 
• President- I an Sowerby 

• Board Members: 
Gary Gardiner 
Jeff Gallus 
Rod Watson 
Sean Delaney 
Andrew Mahar 
Marcus van Enk (incoming) 

• Officers: 
Claude Cullino - Chief Executive Officer 
John Stewart- General Manager, Operations 
Cath Stephensen- General Manager, Training & Development 
Gaye Shillinglaw- General Manager, Finance & Governance 

• Members/Observers: 
15 in attendance (list has been kept on record). 

1. Apologies 
Motion: That the apologies from Tony Croagh, John Plumridge, John Lander and 
Andrew Simpson be received. 

Moved: Jeff Gallus Seconded: Gary Gardiner 
Carried 

K:ICCF Main\(1) Civil Contractors Federalion\1 .0 Victorian Branch\1 .0.2 Executive Commillee\1 .0.2.2.1 Annual General Meeling\AGM 201 2\Minules of AGM Meeling 7 Sept 
2011.doc 



2. Minutes of the Previous Annual General Meeting 

Motion: That the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 7 September 2010 be 
adopted as a true record of the proceedings of that meeting. 

Moved: Rod Watson 

3. 2010/11 Annual Report 

Seconded: Ken Edgley 
Carried 

Motion: That the Annual Report be received. 

Moved: Gary Gardiner Seconded: Andrew Mahar 
Carried 

4. Presentation of 2010/11 Annual Statement of Accounts 

Motion: 
That the Audited Financial Statement for the year ending 301

h June 2011 be accepted. 

Moved: Jeff Gallus 

5. Appointment of Auditor 

Seconded: Gary Gardiner 
Carried 

Motion: That the current Auditor, Michael Shulman of Stannards Accountants and 
Advisors Pty Ltd be re-appointed as Auditor for the 2011/12 financial year. 

Moved: Sean Delaney 

6. Appointment of Returning Officers 

Seconded: Rod Watson 
Carried 

Motion: That Ken Edgley be appointed as Honorary Returning Officer and lan Shields 
and Peter Maguire as Honorary Assistant Returning Officer for 2011/12. 

Moved: Marcus Van Enk Seconded: Sean Delaney 
Carried 

K:ICCF Main\(1) Civil Ccnlraclors Federalion\1 .0 Victorian Branch\1 .0.2 Executive Committee\1 .0.2.2.1 Annual General Meeting\AGM 2012\Minutes of AGM Meeting 7 Sept 
2011 .doc 



7. Declarations of Election Results 

President, lan Sowerby acknowledged and thanked the retiring Board Member, David 
Draper for his contribution and commitment to the Board, and welcomed the recently 
elected new Board Member, Marcus Van Enk. 

The CEO, Claude Cullino acknowledged and thanked outgoing President, lan Sowerby 
for his enormous contribution over the past 3 years and welcomed incoming President, 
Andrew Mahar. 

Motion: That the Returning Officer's Declaration be noted. 

Moved: Jeff Gallus 

8. General Business 

There were no General Business items. 

10. Meeting Closed: 9.30am 

Seconded: Rod Watson 
Carried 

K:ICCF Main\(1) Civil Contractors Federalion\1.0 Victorian Branch\1 .0.2 Executive Commiltee\1 .0.2.2.1 Annual General Meeling\AGM 2012\Minutes of AGM Meeting 7 Sept 
2011.doc 



c~ 
CIVIL CONTRACTORS 

FEDERATION 

Annual General Meeting 

Held on Tuesday 16th October 2012@ 9.00am 
· at the CCF Office~:-.. 

Level 1, 322 Glenferrie Rq~fj· ·Malvern 
.-.::-.':" }·< 

Minutes of. ~eetl119 
>/,. ···-: ''·· ... 

Present: 
• President 
• Vice President 
• National Board Member 

Board Members: 
Jeff Gallus <&~<: ·' \s~-,, 

..-'%,~· ,.~~ 
Sean Oela~Y,~· · >··~~-~ 
Alex Lukac ·. ·<· .. _ '\::» 
R h 0 'd -.:;:;~. $,\'>.~ 

o an avt son·-: .. .-~~~~:. ~:.-:::-
. ·.. . ·. "< '·, -~~~,~-~-~~~ • . • . . . >-'3:\'-'::•'' .... '~~ 

Casual .. ~~~rd Memt?~rs: ~-::.~ ·--~:::~~--.. 
Sophie Brown··. · ~~:..). ,.._.'*~~· 
' -~-
Glenn Johnston · -..:;~i~;\:~~ 

. ,,~~~·~ 
Officers: · · "'~.~~ 

John Stewart- Chief Executive Officer 
Rob Garrard- Mana~-~t~'Training Services 
Samantha Orsinp --~Jo CEO (Minutes) 

. ' 

,· 

• Members/Observers: 
- 12 in attendance (list has been kept on record). 



1. Apologies 

Motion: That the apologies from Andrew Simpson, lan Sowerby, John Plumridge and 
Marcus Van Enk, be received. 

Moved: Gary Gardiner 
Carried 

Seconded: Sean Delaney 

2. Minutes of the Previous Annual General Meeting 

Motion: That the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on ih September 2011 be 
adopted as a true record of the proceedings of that meeti!l_Q> 

Moved: Sean Delaney Secq~~~ Jeff Gallus 
Carried · ~'~~- -~ 

3. 2011/12 Annual Report 

Motion: That the Annual Report be received. 

Moved: Sean Delaney 
Carried 

. •. 

Sec·Qrided: Gary Gardiner 

4 . . Presentation of 2(J.1'1t1.2.Annual Statement of)\ccounts 
• ~!""" • ' .• • • • • .~ '-.. • ~ 

' (~ ' •, 

Motion: ·= ~ ,~: . ·· ·~ 

That the Audited FinanCi~J -~!atf1.ro~.Q:t for the y~~f ending 301
h June 2012 be accepted. 

• . • .~.::~ :~.: :~·~·:·;; ·:- .~> : . ··~ ~ -, 

Moved: -·S~an Delaney " ··.f.::.:~:.:; : · (~t~~~~onded: Jeff Gallus 
Carrie~ : ::~ · .... · ·. ~<':?.'#' 

'-., ... -~-.· .',, • . ,1 

'\. ~ • "> 
.. " 

5. Appointme.~t ·o~ Auditor! . . :: . 
. ~', ·~:· .... 

Motion: That the ctitrent Auq)lqr; Michael Shulman of Stannards Accountants and 
Advisors Pty Ltd, be r~~~.P:Q~~te;·d as Auditor for the 2012/13 financial year. 

Moved: Gary Gardiner 
·, 

Seconded: John Lander 
Carried 

6. Appointment of Returning Officers 

Motion: That Ken Edgley be appointed as Honorary Returning Officer, and Adrian Fuller 
and Peter Maguire as Honorary Assistant Returning Officers for 2012/1 3. 

Moved: Rohan Davidson 
Carried 

Seconded: Sean Delaney 



7. Declaration of Office Bearers 

Due to there being no election of Office Bearers this year, Branch President, Andrew 
Mahar, acknowledged and thanked retiring Board Members, Tony Croagh and Rod 
Watson, for their contribution and commitment to the Board; he welcomed new casual 
Board Members, Sophie Brown and Glenn Johnston. 

It was noted that Board Elections are due at the next AGM, to be held in September 2013. 

Motion: That the Returning Officer's Declaration be noted. 

Moved: Jeff Gallus 
Carried 

8. General Business 

There were no General Business items. 

9. Meeting Closed: 9.30am 

Seconded: Rod Watson 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS 
FEDERATION 

Certificate of Designated Officer 
S268 of Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

I, Andrew Mahar, being the President of the Civil Contractors Federation, 
Victorian Branch certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report, 
referred to in S268 of the RO Act; and 

• that the full report, was provided to members on 14th August 2012; and 

• that the full report was presented to the General Meeting of Members 
of the reporting unit on 16th October 2012; in accordance with section 
266 of the RO Act. 

Signature 

Date: 16th October 2012 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 
VICTORIAN BRANCH 
ABN: 97 341 352 156 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

30 JUNE 2012 

Coghlans Accountants & Advisors 
LevelS, 969 Burke Road 
Camberwell VIC 31 24 

Phone: 03 9835 6000 Fax: 03 9835 6010 
Email: ca@coghlans.net.au 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

OPERATING REPORT 

The Commitlee Members present this report of the CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION VICTORIAN 
BRANCH for the financial year ended 30 June 2012. 

Committee ol Management Members 

Tile persons who held office as members of the Committee of Management of the Branch wring the 
financial year were: 

Andrew Mahar 
John lander 
Joseph Sinpson 
Gary Gardiner 

Alex L.ukac 
lanSowelby 
Jeff Gallus 
Jolvl Plumridge 
Marcus Van Enk 
Rod Watson 
Rohan Davidson 
Sean Delaney 
TonyCroagh 

Principal Activities 

President & Attemate Board Member (National) 
V~ee President 
Treasurer 
National Board Member & Board Member 

The principal activities ·of· the Branch 1iurlng the ·financial -yeaJ'were··to ·represent ·th&members-·as a ·peak-~--~--~ 
employer body in VICtoria and provide member services consistent with the otljects of the Federation. 

Results of Principal Activities 

The Branch's principal actMties resuHed in a profit of $134,012 (2011: $137,842). 

For the 2012 year. the Branch generated operating cash inflows of $23,331, and it generated positive cash 
flows of $851,602 from financil'lJ and investing activities. Cash balances during the year have increased 
from $560,223 to $1.435,156 as a result of its activities and investment redemptions during the year. As at 
reporting date, it has a working capital surplus of $1,392,732 (2011: $306,514). 

Significant Changes 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Branch's principal activities during the financial year. 

No matters or circumstances arose durlng the reporting year which significantly affected the financial affairs 
of the Branch. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen siree the end of the financial year which significanUy affected or 
may significantly affect the operations of the Branch. the result of those operations, or the state of affairs of 
the Branch in future mancial years. 

(.j(ely developments in the operations of the Branch and the expected results of those operations in future 
financial years have not been irduded in this report as the inclusion of such information Is likely to restjt in 
unreasonable prejucflce to the Blanch. 
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MelilbeiS and Employees 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352156 

OPERATING REPORT 

The number of persons who, at the end of the year, were recorded on the Register of Members was 682. 
The number of persons who were, at the end of the year, employees of the VICtorian Branch of the 
Federation was 14.88 employees measured on a full time basis. 

Trustee or director of trustee company of superannuation entity of exempt public sector 
superannuation scheme 

No officer or member holds a dedicated position as a superannuation trustee under section 254(2)(d) of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Manner of Resignation 

Members may resign from the Victorian Branch of the Federation in accordance with rule 9, and section 
174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act. Rule 9 reads as follows: 

Rule 9- RESIGNATION OF MEMBERS 

(a) A Member may resign from the Federation by written notice addressed and de§vered to the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

(b) A notice of resignation from membership of the Federation takes effect: 

(i) At the end of two weeks after the notice is received by the Federation; or 
(ii) On the day speciied in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

(c) Any dues payable but not paid by a former Member of the Federation in relation to a period before 
the Member's resignation from the Federation took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the 
name of the Federation, in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the Federation. 

(d) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in sub-rule (1) shall be taken to have been received by 
the Federation when it was delivered. 

(e) A notice of resignation that has been received by the Federation is not valid because it was not 
addressed and delivered in accordance with sub rufe (a) of rule 9. 

(f) A resignation from membership of the Federation is valid even if it is not effected in accordance 
with this section if the Member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Federation that the 
resignation has been accepted: 

Name: JOHN STEWART 

T~le of Office held: J F EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

"'""'"'" ~:~ 
Date: /O~ 4~1 :;2,i}f2 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

COMMITIEE OF MANAGEMENT REPORT 

On 1Oth August 2012, the Committee of Management of the Civil Contractors Federation, Victorian Branch, 
passed the following resolution in relation to the General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR) of the reporting 
unit for the financial year ended 2012: 

The Committee of Management declares in relation to the GPFR that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

{b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager 
of Fair Work Australia (FWA); 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they become due and payable; 

{e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

{i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

{ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the nules of a branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance 
with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the Fair Work (Registered 

_ ~QX951!l.i§~tLons,LB~gu_l<;lti()ll§.2~~Q~;_(3.11_d~ ~ ··-.--.---. -~--------- - ··--------·· -·-·------·-· __ ·~ ··----·--·---··--------- _________ . _____ _ 

(iv) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a 
consistent manner to each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

(v) the information sought in any request of a member of the reporting unit or the General 
Manager of FWA duly made under section 272 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 has been furnished to the member or General Manager of 
FWA; and 

(vi) no orders have been made by the Commission under section 273 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

(vii) in relation to recovery of wage activity, there has been no recovery of wage activity 
during the year. 

For Committee of Management: 

Title of Office held: PRESIDENT, VICTORIAN BRANCH 

Signature: 

Andrew Mahar 

Date: 1oth August 2012 
5 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

2012 
Note $ 

Revenue 2 3,778,377 
3,778,377 

Accountancy expenses (29,409) 
Auditors' remuneration 3 (8,197) 
Bad and doubtful debt expenses 4 (5,224) 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4 (79,736) 
Employee benefits expenses 4 (1 ,555,360) 
Investment expenses 
Other expenses (1,966,439) 
Profit before income tax 134,012 

Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year 1,362,880 

Retained earnings at the end of the financial year 1,496,892 

The accompanying notes farm part of these financial statements. 

2011 
$ 

3,496,645 
3,496,645 

(18,491) 
(8,965) 

(891) 
(72,450) 

(1 ,529, 136) 
(8,800) 

(1 '720,070} 
137,842 

1,225,038 

1,362,880 
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Profit for the period 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341352156 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

Note 
2012 

$ 

134,012 

Other Comprehensive income for the period 

Total Comprehensive income for 1he period 

Total Comprehensive Income atributable to members 
of the organisation 

134,012 

134,012 

2011 
$ 

137,842 

137,842 

131,842 

--------------------------------------

The accompanying notes form part ollhese finalx:ial slatements.. 7 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2012 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Inventories 
Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Total Non-Current Assets 
Total Assets 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Borrowings 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 

·· ····· · ·· ·· Non-GurrenH:iabilities - -­
Trade and other payables 
Borrowings 
Provisions 
Total Non-Current liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Net Assets 

Equity 
Reserves 
Retained earnings 
Total Equity 

Note 

5 
6 
7 
8 

9 
10 

11 
12 
13 
14 

11 
12 
13 

15 
16 

2012 
$ 

1,435,156 
1,500,227 

11,483 
29,002 

2,975,868 

12,500 
275,610 
288,110 

3,263,978 

1,433,514 
71,256 
68,276 
10,090 

i,5s3J36 

2,000 
103,987 

75,963 
181 ,956 

1,765,086 
1 ,4!:!8,892 

2,000 
1,496,892 
1,498,892 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial slatements. 

2011 
$ 

560,223 
1,257,054 

13,919 
52,198 

i l38~.~94 

948,721 
274,332 

1 ,22~.05~ 
3,Hi6,447 

1,360,382 
72,295 
94,113 
50,Q90 

i,576,8lm 

2,000 
106,700 
55,987 

i64,S8i 
i '741 ,5157 
9 ,364,88ri 

2,000 
1,362,880 
i,364,sso 

8 
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Balance at 1 July 2010 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352156 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

Retained 
Earnings 

General 
Reserves­
Members' 

Debentures 

1,225,038 2,000 

Profit attributable to members 137,842 

Balance at 30 June 2011 1,362,880 2,000 

Profit attributable to members 134,012 

Balance at 30 June 2012 1,496,892 2.000 

Total 

1,227,038 

137,842 

11364,880 

134,012 

1,498,892 

~------------------------------·--~-------~------~~--------------------

Theaccunpanylng notes fonn pari ollllese lnandal statements. 9 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

CASHFLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

Cash Rows From Operating Activities 
Cash Receipts in the course of operations 
Cash Receipts fr001 related parties 
Interest Received 
Cash Payments in the course of operations 
Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities 

Cash Rows from Investing Activities 
Payment for Plant & Equipment 
Proceeds from disposal of Plant & Equipment 
(Payment)JWilhdrawls from Investments 
Net casb provided by (used In) investing actlvfties 

Cash Flows from Financing ActlviUes 
Net Repayment of Hire Purchases 
Net cash provided by (used In) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 

Note 

18 

2012 
$ 

3,401,262 
82,012 
33,128 

(3,493,071) 
23,331 

(24,665) 
29,935 

936,221 
941,491 

(89,889) 
(89,889} 

874,933 

2011 
$ 

3,436,208 
82,012 
38,391 

(3,453,698) 
102,913 

(30,079) 
87,879 

(43,046) 
14,754 

(132,573) 
(132,573) 

(14,906) 

.. 

--... ~~.--....... ~~···-Gash-albeginningof·flnancialfBBl-~-------····=-------~ ·-- -----515.129-.....--····~-.--..... ..; 

Cash at end of year 5 1,435,156 

The 8CCIDillpanying no1es form part of IIese linandal Slatemenls. 10 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1 : Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial report is a general purpose flllanCial report that has been prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 
Ad 2009 and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009. 

The financial report covers CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION VICTORIAN BRANCH as an individual 
entity. 

The fmancial report of CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION VICTORIAN BRANCH complies with all 
International Rnancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in their entire1y. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted in tt'le preparation of the financial 
report. The acoounting policies have been consistendy applied, unless otherwise stated. 

Reporting Basis and Conventions 
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by 
the revaluation of selected non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair 
value basis of accounting has been applied. 

Accounting Policies 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable vakJe. Costs are assigned on the 
basis of weighted average costs. 

b. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, 
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Plant and Equipment 
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually to ensure it is not in excess of the 
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the 
expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent 
disposal. The expeded net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining 
recoverable amounts. 

Depreciation 
The depreciable amount of all fiXed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but 
excldng freehold land, is depreciated on a straight 6ne basis over their useful lives to the entity 
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives 
of the improvements. 

The acoompanylng notes form part of lhese financial statements. 11 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 
Class of FIXed Asset Depreciation Rate 
Motor Vehicles 18.75%- 25% 
Plant and equipment 1.5-66.67"/o 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adj.Jsted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date. 

An assefs carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assefs 
canyi_ng amount is greater than its esfimaled recoverable amotm~. -. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the canying amount. 
These gains or losses are included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, 
amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained 
earnings. 

c. Leases 
leases of fixed assets where substantiaHy all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of 
the asset, but notthe legal ownership are transferred to the entity, are classified as finance leases. 

Fmance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a iability at the lower of the amounts 
equal to the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 
including any guaranteed residual values. lease payments are allocated between the reduction of 

~······---·"'·"~'"·""·""''"''"·--~ ....... ttl!.~.~~ the~~~~~ ~~-~~-.. -~""•""-···-··~-····--.. ·--···-··--·••-'•·••"'·'~·-··~·""~"'""""""""'""' 
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is 
likely that the entity wal obtain ownership of the asset or over the term of the lease. 

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantiaDy all the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight­
line basis over the life of the lease term. 

d. Financial Instruments 
Recognition 
Rnancial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, 
when the related contractual rights or obligations exist Subsequent to initial recognition these 
instruments are measured as set out below. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of sening in the 
short tenn or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the income statement in the period in 
which they arise. 

The aa:ompanyK!g notes fDfm pari of these financial statements. 12 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOlES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not qooted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. 

Held-to-maturity investments 
These Investments have fiXed maturities, and it is the entity's intention to hold these investments to 
maturity. Any held-to-matt.lity investments are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. 

Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale flflancial assets include any f11ancial assets not included in the above categories. 
Available-for-sale financial assefs are re11ected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising 
from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity. 

Rnancialliabilitles 
Non-derivative financial Habilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less 
principal payments and amortisation. 

Fair value 
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation 
techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm's 
length transactions, reference to similar instruments and option pricing models. 

At each .reporting date, the entity assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged 
decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an inpairment has arisen. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. 

e. Impairment of Assets 
At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the hi~ of the asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value In use, is compared to the assefs carrying value. Any excess of the asset's 
carrying value over it recoverable amount Is expensed to the income statement. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amomt of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

f. Employee Benefits 
Provision Is made for the entity's liabHity for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled 
within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled, piUs related on-costs. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured 
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made fur those benefits. 

The accompanyktg noles farm part ollllese ftnanelal statements. 13 



g. Provisions 

CIVIL CONmACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past 
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outftow can 
be reliably measured. 

h. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at caU with banks, other short­
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position. 

I. Revenue 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers. 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the fmancial assets. 

Revenue from the renderirJJ of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the 
customers. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GSl). 

j. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
--·--"·----.-~·~- -·· '"~-· ~ -- · · -.. Revenues;--expenses-and-assets~are-reeognised·net--of-the "811\0ll1Mlf-~T,-exeept·'Where-tf1&-.--~~. .~.. -

amotri of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Ollice. In these cin:umstances 
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the 
expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of fllancial position are shown inclusive of 
GST. 

k. Trade and Other Payables 
Trade and other payables represent the liability outstaroing at the end of the reporting period for 
goods and services received by the entity during the reporting period, which remain unpaid. The 
balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of 
recognition of the liability. 

I. Comparative Figures 
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 
changes in presentation for the current financial year. 

m. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 
The Committee of Management evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial 
report based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a 
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, 
obtained both extemaUy and within the entity. 

The accompanying notes form part of these linanclal statemens. 14 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

n. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 
Interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future reporting periods, some of which 
are relevant to the Branch are set out below. The Branch has decided not to early adopt any of the 
new and amended pronomcements. The Branch's assessment of 1he new and amended 
pmnouncements that are relevant to the Branch but applicable in futt.we reporlflg periods is set out 
below: 

MSB 9: Anancial Instruments (December 2010) and AASB 201G-7: Amendments to 
Australan Acoounling Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 201 0) [AASB 1, 3. 4, S. 7, 
101, 102, 108. 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128. 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127) (applicable for amual reporting periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2013). 

These Standards are applicable retrospeclively and include revised requi'ements for the 
classification and measurement of financial insbunents. as well as recognition and defecognition 
requirements for financial instruments. 

The key changes made to aa:ounting requirements inch.de: 

simplifying the classifications of financial assets into those carried at amortised cost and 
those carried at fair value; 

sifl1>1ifyq) the requirements for embedded derivatives; 
removing the tainting rules associated with held-to-maturity assets; 

·--··-·· .. ··--·-~~--·-· ·~~-------~--~·~-.....removing..tbe..requnments.to .. separakMIIldJait .. .value..embedded..derivatives.ioc..financial __ ~·-·­
assets carried at amortised cost; 
allowing an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on 
Investments in equity instruments that are not held for tradng it other cOmprehensive 
Income. Dividends in respect of these investments that are a return on investment can be 
recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the 
instnmlent; 

requiring financial assets to be reclassified where there is a change in an entilYs business 
model as they are initially classified based on: (a) the objective of the entity's business 
model for managing the financial assets; and (b) the characteristics of the contractual cash 
flows; and 

requiring an enlily that chooses to measure a filancialliabllity at fair valle to present the 
portion of the change in its fair value due to changes i1 the entity's own credit risk In other 
COfl'l)rehensive income, except when that would create an accounting mismatch. H such a 
mismatch would be created or enlarged, the entity is required to preseN all changes in fair 
vaJue (including the effeds of changes in Ute credit risk of the liability) in profit or loss. 

The Branch has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the impact of these pronouncements on 
its f~nancial statements. 

AASB 1053: Applications of Tiel'S of Australian Accounling Standards and MSB 201D-2: 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Discbsure 
Requirernem[AASB 1, 2. 3, 5, 7,8,101, 102,107,108,110, 111,112.116.117,119,121. 
123, 124, 127, 128. 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and 

The acc:ompanyillg notes form part ollhese firanclal slatemenls. 15 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Interpretations 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052] (applicable for annual reporting periods 
commencing on or after 1 July 2013). 

AASB 1 053 establishes a revised differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of 
financial reporting requirements for those entities preparing general purpose fmancial statements. 

Tier 1 : Australian Accounting Standards; and 
Tier 2: Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 

Tier 2 of the framework comprises the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements for 
Tier 1, but contains significantly fewer disclosure requirements. 

Management is yet to determine whether to adopt the reduced disclosure requirements. 

AASB 2010-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferred Tax: Recovery 
of Underlying Assets (AASB 112] (applies to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012). 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 112: Income Taxes and incorporates Interpretation 
121: Income Taxes- Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets into AASB 112. 

Under the current AASB 112, the measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets 
depends on whether an entity expects to recover an asset by using it or by selling it. The 
amendments introduce a presumption that an investment property is recovered entirely through 
sale. This presumption is rebutted If the Investment property is held within a business model whose 

· · · · · · · -·· ~ · ·. ~ ~ ·"-"' ·---· -- · · ~moojeaiVe'1S1ooonsunie"siffiStamiiil!~riilnirlfieecooomiC"6eif.eflls eiffiOHied "iinHe lnvi:lSlmem· · ·· · · · 
property over time, rather than through sale. 

The amendments are not expected to significantly impact the Branch. 

AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11: Joint Arrangements, AASB 12: 
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, AASB 127: Separate Financial Statements (August 
2011), AASB 128: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (August 2011) and AASB 
2011-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation 
and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 
121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17] 
(applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013). 

AASB 10 replaces parts of AASB 127: Consotidated and Separate Financial Statements (March 
2008, as amended) and Interpretation 112: Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. AASB 1 0 
provides a revised definition of control and additional application guidance so that a single control 
model will apply to all investees. The Branch has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the 
impact of this Standard on its financial statements. 

AASB 11 replaces AASB 131: Interests in Joint Ventures (July 2004, as amended). AASB 11 
requires joint arrangements to be classified as either 'joint operations" (whereby the parties that 
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities) or 
joint ventures" {where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net 
assets of the arrangement). Joint ventures are required to adopt the equity method of accounting 
(proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed). 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 16 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AASB 12 contains the disclosure requirements applicable to entities that hokJ an interest in a 
subsidiary, joint venture, joint operation or associate. AASB 12 also introdx:es the concept of a 
"structured entity'", replacing the •special purpose entity" concept currenUy used i1 lntetpretation 
112. and requires specific disclosures in respect of any ilvestments in unconsolidated structured 
entitles. This Standard wDI affect disclo&rns only and is not expected to significantly impact the 
Branch. 

To facilitate the application of AASBs 10, 11 and 12, revised versions of MSB 127 and MSB 128 
have also been issued. These Standards are not expected to signific:anlly impact the Branch. 

MSB 13: Fair Value Measurement and MSB 2011-8: Amendments to Australian 
Accomting Standards arising from MSB 13 [AASB 1, 2. 3. 4, 5, 7, 9, 20(B.11, 2010..7, 101, 
102,108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121,128, 131,182.133,134, 136.138, 139, 140, 
141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 4. 12. 13, 14, 17. 19, 131 & 132] (applicable 
for anrual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013). 

AASB 13 defines fair value, sets out in a single Standard a framework for measuring fair value, and 
requires dsclosures about fair value measurements. 

MSB 13 requires: 

fr1luls to _. fair v-. meastl8l1lel1ls 1D be categolisad rn acconfa11l8 wllh a faW VIWe 
. . and 

enhanced disclosures reganfmg all assets and liabilities fmclucmg, but not limited to, 
filancjal assets and financial liabilities) meastKed at fair value. 

These Standards are not expected to significanlly iqlact the Branch. 

MSB 2011-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Presentation of Items of 
Other Comprehensive Income [MSB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 
1 049] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2012). 

The main change arising from this Standard is the requirement for entities to group items presented 
in other comprehensive income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to 
profit or loss subsequently. 

This standard affecls presentation only ood is therefore not expected to slgnHicantly impact the 
Branch. 

MSB 119: Employee Benefits (September 2011) and MSB 2011-10: Amendments to Australian 
.Acoounting Standards arising from MSB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1. MSB 8, MSB 101, 
AASB 124, MSB 134, MSB 1049 & AASB 2011-B and lnterpretatoo 14} (applicable for annual 
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 Janumy 2013). 

These Standards introduce a number of changes to accounting and presentation of defined benefit 
plans. The Branch does not have any defmed benefit plans and so is not impacted by the 
amendment. 

AASB 119 (September 2011) also includes changes to: 

The 8flCOII!p&l~ notes form part of IIese mancial SlldamaniS. 17 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

require only those benefits that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the 
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service to be 
classified as short-term employee benefits. All other employee benefits are to be classified 
as other long-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits or termination benefits, as 
appropriate; and 

the accounting for termination benefits that require an entity to recognise an obligation for 
such benefits at the earlier of: 

(i) for an offer that may be withdrawn -when the employee accepts; 

(ii) for an offer that cannot be withdrawn - when the offer is communicated to affected 
employees; and 

(iii) where the termination is associated with a restructuring of activities under AASB 137: 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and if earlier than the first two conditions­
when the related restructuring costs are recognised. 

The Branch has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the impact of these changes to AASB 119. 

o. Reporting Unit/Information to members or Registrar 
. trl.accordanG.e .. withthe ... reQu.ir.emeotsJQLthfl.f?JtWQr_k .. (Begister.l3.d .. OrganisgtiQnsl ... A9t ... <!OP9,. as 
amended, the attention of members is drawn to the provisions of Sub-Sections (1 ), (2) and (3) of 
272 which reads as follows: 

i) A member of a reporting unit, or a General Manager of FWA, may apply to the reporting 
unit tor specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be available to 
the person making the application. 

2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 
14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit 

3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1) 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 18 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2 Revenue 

Operating activities 
Interest received 
Rendering of services 
Other revenue 
Profit on Sale of Non-current Assets 
Total revenue 

3 Auditor's Remuneration 

Audit Services 

4 Profit from Ordinary Activities 

Expenses 

Loss on Sale of Non-current Assets 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Bad Debts Written Off 
Total bad and doubtful debts 

Rental of Premises 
Operating Lease Expenditure 

Salary and Benefits -Officers 
Salary and Benefits- Non-Officers 

Significant Revenue 
lncolink Funding 

33,128 
2,367,232 
1,377,870 

147 
3,778,377 

8,197 
8,197 

79,736 

5,224 
5,224 

151,008 
30,720 

181,728 

284,397 
1,270,963 
1,555,360 

644,368 
644,368 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

38,391 
1,833,560 
1,624,694 

3,496,645 

8,965 
8,965 

13,548 

72,450 

891 
891 

151,332 
23,177 

174,509 

180,073 
1,349,063 
1,529,136 

656,899 
656,899 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Current 
Deposit 
Cash at Bank 
Commercial Bills 

Reconciliation of cash 

4,000 
239,684 

1,-191,472 
1,435,156 

4,000 
171,010 
385,213 
560,223 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the 
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as set out above. 

6 Trade and Other Receivables 

Current 
Unamortised GST on Cars 
Trade Debtors 
Sundry Debtors 

7 Inventories 

···· · curi;enc 
Publications on Hand- at cost 
Cards on Hand - at cost 

8 Other Current Assets 

Current 
Borrowing Costs 
Prepayments 
Withholding Tax 

1,500,227 

1,500,227 

6,539 
4,944 

11,483 

994 
27,670 

338 
29,002 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

14,953 
1,238,252 

3,849 
1,257,054 

12,484 
1,435 

13,919 

1,004 
50,856 

338 
52,198 

20 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9 Financial Assets 

Available for sale financial 
assets 
Unlisted inveslmen1s, at fair value 
Total available-for-sale f"mandaJ assets 

10 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Motor Vehicles: 
At cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Total motor vehicles 

Office Furniture & Equipment: 
At cost 
Accurm.dated depreciation 
Total office furniture & equipment 
Total property, plant and equipment 

Movements in C&rrying Amounts 

12.500 
12S500 

298,501 
{111,251) 

18T,250 

289,300 
(200,940) 

88,360 
2/5,616 

948,721 
948,121 

255,870 
(72.389) 
183,481 

348,504 
(257,653) 

90,851 
274,332 

· "' UOvemerrufiiH:anyiJlramoonrfdi""~ ·~·ot ~.p~anraoo ·equipment betvleen the ---· ·.----· 
beginning and the end of the current financial year 

OffiCe 
Motor Furniture& 

Vehicles Equipment Total 
$ $ $ 

Balance at the 1 Jajy 2010 227,712 75,.262 302,974 
Additions 110,031 35,204 145,235 
Disposals {101.427) (101,427) 
Depreciation Expense (52,835) l19,615J ~,450} 
Canying amount at 30 June 2011 183,481 90,851 4,332 

Additions 88,379 22,423 110,802 
Disposals (27,335) (2,453) (29,788) 
DepreQalion Expense (57,275) (22,461} ~,736} 
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 187.250 88;360 !i,610 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11 Trade and Other Payables 

Current 
Income Not Yet Earned 
Accounts Payable 
Other Creditors 
Payroll Liabilities 
GST Payable 

Non-Current 
Debentures Not Repayable Within One Year 

12 Borrowings 

Current 
Hire Purchase Liability 
Less: Unexpired Hire Purchase Liability 

Non-Current 

1,147,116 
114,350 

10,786 
30,238 

131,024 
1,433,514 

2,000 

81,731 
(1 0,475) 

71,256 

1,062,561 
114,706 
13,181 
34,152 

135,782 
1,360,382 

2,000 

87,205 
(14,910) 

72,295 

Hire Purchase Liability 109,003 112,068 
·tess Unexpired Hire Purchase Liability- · ·· ---- - ··---- - - -.. - -·-----.. ---(5,816}------· ----· ·-- :={5;368)- ---·-- .-...... - -- -

103,987 106,700 

13 Provisions 

Provision for Annual Leave 

Provision for Long Service Leave 
Total provisions 

Analysis of Total Provisions 
Current 
Non-current 

No entitlement provisions relate to officeholders. 

68,276 
75,963 

144,239 

68,276 
75,963 

144,239 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

94,113 
55,987 

150,100 

94,113 
55,987 

150,100 
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cnnLCONTRACTORSFEDERAnON 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO lliE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

14 Other Uabilities 

10,090 
10,090 

15 Reserves 

General Reserve- Members' Debentures 

There has been no movement in lhe reserve duri1g the current or prec:edmg year-. 

16 Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year­
Net profit attributable to the elllitr 
Relained earnings at the end of the ti1ancial year 

17 Capital and Leasing Commitments 

~-mininum"HB&~pa)meQts 
Not later lhan 12 months 
Later than 12 Mon1hs but not later 1han 2 years 
Later than 2 years but not later 1han 5 years 
Mrimum HWe Purchase paymen&s 
Less future fi1ance charges 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

1,362,880 
134,012 

1,496,892 

81,731 
93,182 
15,820 

190,733 

(15,~ 
175,2 

40,000 
10,090 
50,090 

2.000 

1,.225,038 
137,842 

1,362,880 

87,205 
65,175 
46,893 

199,273 
(20,2~ 
178, 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

H Capital and Leasing Commitments (Continued) 

Operating Lease Commitments 
Payable - minimum Operating Lease payments 

Not later than 12 months 

Later than 12 Months but not later than 2 years 

Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 

Minimum Operating Lease payments 

18 Cash Flow Information 

Reconciliation of net cash provided by operating 
activities to profit after income tax 
Profit from Ordinary Activities after income tax 
Add I (Less) Non Cash Flows in Profit from Ordinary 
Activities: 
- Depreciation 
- (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Plant & Equipment 

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 

200,801 

189,380 
500,120 
890,301 

134,012 

79,736 
(147) 

213,601 

--· ---(Increase )/Decrease inTfade Deotors ~~----~-~-~-----.·~-~(26~,975)~ 

- (lncrease)/Decrease in Inventory 2,436 
- (lncrease)/Decrease in Prepayments 23,186 
- (lncrease)/Decrease in Other Assets 10 
- (lncrease}/Decrease in Other Receivables 18,802 
- lncrease/(Decrease} in Payables 73,132 

- lncrease/(Decrease} in Other Liabilities (40,000} 
- Increase/( Decrease) in Employee Entitlements (5,861} 

Net cash provided by operating activities 23,331 

The entity currently has no credit standby or financing facilities in place. 

160,987 
21,149 
23,360 

205,496 

137,842 

72,450 
13,548 

223,840 

.. -------- ···-·· (48,410) .. -- ---­
(2,949) 

126 
(366) 
2,997 

(94,210} 

5,872 
16,013 

102,913 

There were no non-cash financing or investing activities during the period except for the hire 
purchase of $86,137 of motor vehicles. 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 24 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO lliE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

19 Financial Instruments 

Financial Risk Management 

The entity's financial instruments consists primarily of deposits with banks. local money market 
instruments. short-term inveslments, aa:oonts receivable and payable, bills and leases. 

The entity does not have any derivative ioslnments at 30 June 2012. 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Managed Investments 
Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Bank overdraft secured 

Average 
Efleclive 
l'nteresl 

Hale 
'If. 

4.24% 

Fixed l'olerest Rale Maturillg 

FloafiDg 
lntenlsl Rate WUI1in1Year 1 lD 5 Ylli!IS 

$ $ $ 

239,684- 1,195.472 

Zl9,684 1,195,472 

Non 
rnteresl 
Bearing Total 

$ $ 

1,435,156 

1,435,156 

-~. -.... -... -. .......--·~~-·-"l'mlll~t:Ja1111i11R--·-~-~-···· .--
=============================== 

The net fair values of listed investments have been valued at the quoled maJket bid price at balance 
dale and adjUSied for transaction costs expected to be incurred. For other assets and other liabilities, 
the net iair value approximates their carrying value. No financial assets and financial liabilities are 
readily traded in otgaDised markets in standardised form other than listed investments. 

The aggregate net iair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities which 
approximate each other are disclosed in the Statement of Fmancial Posilion and in the ootes to 1he 
financial staternenls. 

A 1% change in interest rates would change profit before tax by $14,352 

The Committee of Management meet regularly to monitor riQIJidity and credit risk, based on 'forecast 
ecmomic condilions and cashflow requirements. No foreign cooency risk exists 

The~ fiOtes form part ollhese financial sratemen~s. 



CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

19 Financial Instruments (Continued) 

Financial Instruments 
Aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at balance 
date: 

2012 2011 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Managed Investments 
Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Bank overdraft secured 
Total Financial Liabilities 

20 Related Party Transactions 

Carrying 
Amount Net Fair Value 

$ $ 

1,435,156 1,435,156 

1,435,156 1,435,156 

Carrying 
Amount Net Fair Value 

$ $ 

560,223 560,223 

936,221 936,221 
1,496,444 1,496,444 

· --·····- ·· ··· -Tmnsactions-between related-parties are on normal commercial-terms-and-conditions . . ...... -····-· ........ ·-~~·-· .. 
no more favorable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

The ultimate parent entity is the Civil Contractors Federation, of which this reporting 
entity is the Victorian Branch. The names of Committee members are set out in the 
Operating Report 

Other related parties are other state branches of the Civil Contractors Federation. 

Transactions with related parties: 
Income 
Interstate Branches 
Expenses 
Affiliation- National CCF 
Other- National CCF 
CMS Expenses 

As at30 June 2012 the balances receivable from related 
parties are as follows: 

CCF- National Branch 
CCF- NSW Branch 
CCF - NT Branch 
CCF - SA Branch 
CCF- Old Branch 
CCF- Tas Branch 

$ 

53,093 

157,827 
9,891 

167,718 

15,469 

66 

(57) 

2,863 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

$ 

158,071 

152,910 
3,560 

501635 
207,105 

(13,949) 
1,476 

2,907 
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21 Entity Details 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341352156 

NOTES TO TifE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The principal place of business of the entity is: 

Level 2. 1928 Burwood Road, 
Hawlhom VICtoria. 3122 

ThB principal segment Is member services within Aus1ralia. 

The entity is domiciled in Australia. 

22 Dependency 

The branch is economicaly dependant on membelship fees and tranng fees. 
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CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

ABN: 97 341 352 156 

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

INCOME 
Membership Contributions 
Publications 
Training Fees 

OTHER INCOME 
Interest Received 
Meetings & Social Functions 
lncolink 
Sundry Income 
CMS Income 
OAMPS State End Fee 

EXPENSES 
Accountancy Fees 
Affiliation & CEO meetings- National C.C.F. 
Auditor's Remuneration 
Bad Debts Written Off 
Bank Charges 
CMS 

- GomputerWeb Stte 
Depreciation 
Hire Purchase Charges 
Investment Expenses 
Legal & Professional Costs 
Loss on Sale of Non-current Assets 
Meeting·s, Seminars & Functions 
Motor Vehicle Expenses 
Other Administrative Costs 
Payroll Tax 
Provision for Annual Leave 
Provision for Long Service Leave 
Publications 
Regional Support Expenditure 
Salaries & Benefits - Officers 
Salaries & Benefits - Non Officers 
Scholarship 
Special Projects and Advocacy 
Subscriptions 
Training Expenditure 
Travelling & Accommodation 
Victorian Prequal 

Profit before income tax 

2012 
$ 

1,057,860 
60,765 

1,248,607 
2,367,232 

33,128 
579,553 
644,368 

46,746 
37,350 
70,000 

1 ,411 '145 
3,778,377 

29,409 
174,805 

8,197 
5,224 

10,164 
29,122 

-31,986 
79,736 
26,766 

21,617 

408,782 
54,635 

701,659 
56,437 

(25,837) 
19,976 
41,281 

284,397 
1,270,963 

1,044 
62,306 

7,887 
336,176 

7,633 

3,644,365 
134,012 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial sla\emenls. 

2011 
$ 

972,783 
64,213 

796,564 
1,833,560 

38,391 
754,166 
656,899 

91,772 
70,175 
51,682 

1,663,085 
3,496,645 

18,491 
152,910 

8,965 
891 

11,483 
12,882 

- --- --- 10,058 
72,450 
22,171 

8,800 
30,075 
13,548 

364,106 
75,988 

590,018 
67,255 

1,924 
14,089 

37,390 
7,027 

180,073 
1,349,063 

128 
87,092 
12,132 

136,591 
22,568 
50,635 

3,358,803 
137,842 
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stannards 
ACCOUNTANTS and ADVISORS 

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
TO THE BOARD OF THE 

CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 
VICTORIAN BRANCH 

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, during the year ended 
30 June 2012, there have been:-

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements in relation to the audii; and 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

s~ t.,.........J.,~ ~,_._.~. 

Stannards, Accountants & Advisors 
1/60 Toorak Road, South YalTa VIC 3141 

~ 
MichaerShulman 
Partner (Registered Company Auditor: 163888) 
Holder of Current Public Practice Certificate 

Date: IO\<S\>1 

Stannards Accountants and Adviso.rs Pty Ltd 
A.CN. 006 857 441 
Postal: PO Box 581, South Yarra. Vic 3141 
Levell, 60 Toorak. Road. South Yarra. Vic 3141 
Tel: (03) 9867 4433 Fax: (03)9B67 5118 
Email: advisois@stannards.com.au 

stannards.com.au 



stannards 
ACCOUNTANTS and ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
CIVIL CONTRACTORS FEDERATION 

VICTORIAN BRANCH 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Civil Contractors Federation {VIC 
Branch} ("the Federation") which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 
2012 and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
mf,!mbers funds and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the statement by the VIC 
Branch Committee of Management. 

Board's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The VIC Branch Board of the Federation Is responsible for the preparation and fair 
pre~eiltatlon of the financial report in accordance with Austral ian Accounting Standards 
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and Part 3 of Chapter 8 of Schedule 1 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. This responsibility includes establishing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

.... .. Our-responsibility. is to express an .. opmron on the financial report based on -our audit -We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing 
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
inclul;ling the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fra-ud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes .evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for Our audit opinion. 

Stannard> Accountants and Advisors Pty ltd 
A.C.N. 006 857 441 
Postal: PO Box 581. South Yarra, Vic 3141 
Levell, 60 T0orak Road, South Yarra, Vic 3141 
Tel: (03) 9867 4433 Fax: (03) 9867 5118 
Ema)l: advisors@stannards.com.au 

stannards.com.au 



Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional ethical pronouncements. 

Auditor's opinion 

In our opinion the general purpose financial report of Civil Contractors Federation (VIC Branch) 
presents fairly in accordance with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 the 
Federation's financial position as at 30 June 2012 and its performance for the year ended on 
that date and complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting 
Interpretations). 

There were kept by the VIC Branch satisfactory accounting records which detailed the sources and 
nature of the income (including income from members) and the nature and purposes of the 
expenditure. 

There has been no recovery of wages activity during the year. 

',L;::;;;·~~ 

STAN NARDS ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS 

M B SHULMAN (Holder of Public Practice Certificate) 
Partner 
Auditor Registration no. 163888 

Dated in Melbourne i vk \ ;<.. 
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1. Ovt;RVIEW 

iljs Aonua1 RepOitprovld~ a CQmprehenstve oVerview allhEi acfMties aJ14 ~ctiievements of the 
Civil Contractors Federation (CCf) VictQTiati Branch ower tbe. fin~al ~ 2011-12. 

T#l;s year has seen a p:Miod of r~gnmenf -of strategic diredi0f11~ match member expectations; 
an~ consequ!'lfllly. a ~hJfiaa\t restrooture of~~ bv;s~'eSS w deliver ~ specjfic cit:e~~. 

Whilst .rritlch has changed Wittrin the Branch ovet tne pariod. the. tnaintenance of ¢a= Vi doria"s 
strong financial and advocacy position wkhin the Vid:(Jrlan dvl1 OOnstructioi1 industry has been of 
p~a~_unt il!l~rw.e. T~ has~ ~v~ illrougb ~governance prinqlpfes and 
r®na~~. s~ by a. ~ao~-;;mc:ihigblyfoc;:u~ ~agem-~ ~· 
Sij~ . 

The Board for 2011..-12 has remained stable, following ltle addition of tow-new members In 2010:. 
f1. 

2. THE CON$1R,UC'nON CLIMATE· 

lt is ~early evident •. particularly to members in the southern areas of the state, that climalio _ 
~41ions are p@y~ ~oc with ~y pr~ witt~ bolf1 the wettest~~ atJtumn/spf'illg 
f. · · A. n ·· ·· ~""havefaced--:1~d~· · · · ~ or fmi1nY yec:1rs • . sa resu.,.. m.~y ........... _..... . . . . .. . . . ....,.~.,...,.... . 'UKJI7 .. 111 C9h1P....-ou. 
pr(ljects; ~nd in sQrll~ ~ prOJaicts_ 11aw been at~ until ~s ·~nprove, 

~~climatic sitJ,Jation bas unttoub~dly been eKaeerb~ed l;ly the ovefal redlldions in both 
G.PVerllfflent lnfrastJ:uc~ ~ and.P.ilfc:Jfe ~~9r~~ in~ K~ a,spects of 
.thes!3 iSSUes am the t®uctlon in the VicRoads BUdget and ille 35% ~op ('an S~;MRe ~) of Ute 
housi1g development market; fOitbef, the housing deVelopment sedor ha$ been affected by the 
lack of buyer conrdeOOe fOllowing the recent 'state Budget decision to t1:inoVe tbe highly 
$1Jcte5Stw state ~(lment First ~e ~BonUS. U1ich was gelivered QrtiQp db 
fe~er-- Firs.t ~e ~~rant. · 

,. 

j ,. 
i 
I 

----:r~ovemrRerit:Sed'offiaritOWef8f1erttlad-toiNcttv~ru~blt,_.-twerihe~ -~-~--~···-- -· 
tile precf•bilr ·c;Jf·work opportunities· in th1s sector· remains as a point at c~ion; due .kJ the 
reJu~ Of the~ to make pu~ICaOy av8ilabte, their~ar<J ~ Pfe)gta{TI b~ycn<J ttl& 
c~ye'8il. trpnicdy, the~l&l..Oc:QI~~~that~-
inveSt "'·""':.,1..........,; Of thousandS 1n · · - ""-' human~-... ·a...;;&:.......;... 01. ... ~ 12 .................. t~IUI~ . . . ~-CJIIN . ·~-Qilu....,~ . . ,~n~ ~·.-_-..f!ill' 
.otfoiWaro Woik knOWledge.. This is· a particUiatfOCUS Of Out~ ~-

_PtPif1 ~ totr~t~l\lrer®J.nwoauoe ~spel;i. _~ ~s t~ths ~~ ~tpr ar~ ~ _ 
~fi~ ..... ~ifl)f)tt~$$f.,. ~~ lq ~till ~.0(1~~ of 
the. CtirTent ~ . 

T~§Et {!JlP~~s have ~r~iiY. resolte4 ~ a Rg~ng (!f ~ ln~1 boll in OQ111Peflition fon•orb 
:and ~pfe em~~~ indu$y~. t.t if?~-~-~~ have lD turil..incre~ 
.!M~fQtei:th~-me~~~i;i~. ~Weal'~ihis~\MII ®tttinue.~ 
thefuh.U\3. 

C>~ a l;Jrig~~ ~; ~ Wale,r SElCtor C~_ ~~ ~(s_lfclve ~_maiiltained or sliQ!tly 
"'C,r_ease;,t .o~r r>revtous ye~s. pre'liOOfing -~i~ ~.a oumb!er of members. lbe ~ 
:of the marttet howe~~ re$Uited. ii1 rMi1y ~ tuming-to lnrtQVaiion. martetiOg and 
pi"OOess'irilprovemerit to oounter lightef m8lgins.. higbel" oornpe6lion leVelS .and lower MJfldoads. 

The forVtardvieW for the lndusiJy n,maips stablem lhe CliJMll ~levels lorb stale and lQQat 
Go~ot sectora i"t. ~~aOt s~ is .U()fe. ~tO predid. i)awevertliem 1s _.. · · · 
~tton that there Will b8 scme marginal i~ :as the effects of interest rate cuts and a 
flfoMng popuaation iiK:cease c:temand. · 

I 



3.. THE ec;.~ VICTO)J!AN.B.RANCH 

M!3mbers will. no doubt be aw~re of the $ignificant re-:-stfuqture .Qf ~he Branch foilowi.og tile 
resignation .of Claude Cullirio (CEO 201 0-11) In November 2011. This restr.ucture resulted from the 
neecf f;cne-~lign ~he Branch with member .service expectations, and to create structural effioieneles 
to provi~e ~ -commercially $nhanpecJ bu~Jn~s. As a gulde, tile restructure wil! ~~liver a ~.5% 
improve_menf In th.$ Wa$1&$ to R,evei1U~ t~tio over the 'COJfling y~r. 

The restn..icture has ·seen changes occur In the three key bUsiile.ss aspects of Op!3r:ations, Traiilil'ig 
<:~nd Flnanp~ ancJ G.·ov~rnance. In each business aspect, there have been personnel and process 
ch<;inges, which in the i~t quarter of 2011..,12:dfi'morastrated significant i~p_rovement ln ~en(ic~ 
deliy~ry ~!idJinMcial r.etum. Whilst the imprpve\11ents a,re still ".b~dir1g In• the.re r~maii)S much 
room for fUrthe.t hnprovement $Cross the busln~ss; this will cont{nu~ to P.e drlv13n by tiu~ 
Management Team through the 2012-13 financiaFyear. 

T~~ new CQF Vlctpria 0r.g~n~~~iQJ1~! .Ghart ct:~n be vi~w~d ;;~t AppeJ:l~ix 1, P~ge ·13 •. 

The structural changes. mentioned above have. resulted in strong finan·cial.lmprov¢tnEmt through 
·the second· half _bf the year, and have resulted iri the Branch :achieving a conservative but positive 
surplus at 30th· J~;.me 201.2. The tln~l result Is however a significant finprovement on the original 
~!J(fg~t. a11d demoftstrates the f;liligence of the ~ard and~ M~nagem~nt Te~:~m ·in delivering .. 
improvement It shQuld' be noted that th~ ~tructu~l changes have not resuiteJ;Jin any reduGti<:>n in 
member se~k:e delivery. 

The m~mpe~hlp~Hh_~·Bran<;:h h,as seen some'IT!hlorgrowt!l in ~heAsst;~cjate area but overall has 
1'!3rn~fned q4fte stable aye( the ~ar. A nun:tber of MW iQitia(iv~ ~rrently being imp~ITlEmfed .are 
showing signs· of til creasing membership enquiry, Which is plea~mg given· the ~urrent difficult 
construction environment. 

l 
I 
i -

I 

The CCF Victorian Branch: js governed by a 1 a perso'n Board. each of whOm represents a 
-·-·---contractora-rrtember-cotriparty:-"fhe·Boantmembershipfepresehts-regionamnd·metropolitan,..· ------··~···­

members, s_ma.U,:m~i4m. sn_d,larg~ cqntrac;:tors. and contrac\ors acro5s ~e water, rc;>ads, L~al 
Goverhment and dev~lop[Jlent sectors. 

Tlie resiQiiatioli ofBo.ai'd Member· David Draper was ac·cepted in July 2011, his posltloh was filloo 
by Marcus Van Enk of JHL Civil, from August 2011. 

The ~01.1:-12. Board-~ptlsed t!le:foli9wlng p$t5ohS. Tb,~ r)Uin~ o.fBoarq M~tings ~nded 01.;11· 
of the 10 Btiard Meetings held·, i~ shown in tne ta~le. below: 

Board Member Name Position Held Representative Company Meetings 
.attended 

Andrew Mahar President Pi!J8(<on Pty U!J 8 
John Lander Vice Pte.sident Jaydo CpnstriictioOs Pty ltd 4 
Andrew Sill}llc_soo HOnorary Treas.urer Simpson Cohslructions PtY Uct 6 
Ga.ry Gardiner Nat. Board Delegate Civilwo!X C.onslnrC.tidns Pty Ltd 9 
I an SOIN~rby Board. Member sure constructton~ Pt'v Ltd 10 
Rohan Davidson B.oard Member Winslow Constructors Pty ltd a 
MarcusVan·Ertk. Board Memb~ JHL Civil Pfy Ud 9 
ToriY Croagh ·eoard Member Fulton Ho!tan Pb', Ud 5 
Jeff Gallus· BoarCI Member 13MD Constlii~Il$ Pty Ltd 7' 
·Sean Delaney Board Member D~antP~Ltd 8 
AlexLIWic Board Member Abig{t;~p PlY Ltd . 10 
John Plu'ttiridge BOard Member Mcm Civil Ptv Ltd 9 
Rod WatSon Board M~ber Cut & Fiii'PtVLtd 9 
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The _Br~notJ Board tl~s tJ.lc;. ~onstltutio11al responsibility to set and monitor the strategio direCtion of 
the ~nch, approve _;:in9 fnQnifa.r ~nch Budgets, debate and approve/decline key iliitialjy~s and 
~ctivitle.s that~~~ impact on ~bar~: ~ methbt161ogy !:!mpiQyed to undertake these activities 
c001mences With tile devaloproent Qf a Branch Business PJan, at a workshop held each February. 

rhe Business Pli!Ul ~et~· ou.t am;J pr!ofitises the ~ey iSS\Iesto be addressed for the coniing period. 
From the Bustoess Pt~n. lfle Branch ~anag¢ment Team determines th:e-resot~r~ n_eeds of th.e 
ouslness.required to deliver the i3usineS$ Plan obJectives, an_d fortniJlatEis an Income atn::t ~><pense 
budget The B6aro debates and approves the Budget; ttie Branch'~ 1itiahcial peJforrnance is 
monitored agalnst the Budget at each Board meeting,. the Business P1ai1 Is monitored by the Board 
quafU;tTfy, 

Oft~ 57 ()bjectjve~ in the B4siness Pl_ao ~et in !\Daren 2011 ~ ~9 i~s. h~ye b~~~ d~livare.~ and _13 
rematn ongo)ng; 4ltems the Board determmed.as not appropnate to continue pursu1ng, 1 ~m was 
held over as a result of website issues. tt should be noted that the Forward Business Plan was 
$qQstantially ~vi-ew~d jn February 201~ to refi~ct the ~ha11Qe in ~tegic direction to a more 
merrib~ service based -s~ o_f deliyerabJes; ~E! detiv~aples in this Re~is~ Bu~ess Plan ·are 
progressing within their priplit1sation. Th~ Business Plan is avanable o_n request to all metnb&rs. 

Additional Governance Requirement& 

To further ·enhance govetn~il~ of t~e b_usiness ¢peratlans a·nd iri ~ccord~ce Wlth a provis_!on of 
the Branch'$ RlSk Management Plan, s~al audits w~ undertaken _by~ Branch's 
Accountants. (Coghfans) and/or Auditors (stannards). V\111ilst the Branch received a 'cleah bill of 
IJeafth' i,n regard to t~te pudlts._ ~everal minor oppertunities for Improvement were identified and 
~ppropria.le acti_ons haw been imPlemented. 

aranch Key Perf~>tJnance Indicator's 

A _ ~Y aspect Qf the Bran~s p_er:fm:m~nce ·is !'\~sassed ag~iilst the K~y Performance Indicators 
which fQnn p;:ut of the Bu.si"ess PJao. llte (;omparlSOQ again~t targets follows: 

-- ·-· -·----r-llaiiJlafrnnemberShlp:re~le~ntim-·omu.---------=~-,.tt4~ (tatgeH)a~~t-,~------

• •~-~~ base 618 (tarQel600) 
• Increase by 100k the number· of Councils/Government 

agai)Oias s~ IMS 
• Management System sales 
• Detiy"ery of Busln~s~ Plan Ol;ljecfives 

(frtc_IU(iing ongoing irems) 
• Meet customer Seivfce UAdertakthg targSts 
• Ml:!-)ntain-quality cit ~ction ofw_ri~ material 
-• Maintain Member satisfactiQn i:!t-2010·11 Level 

,. .. 

4% ~e~1Q%) 
26 (terget 3~} 

91 °t,b A~hieve.~(1afget ~%) 
AChieVed 
lmproved_through revle~.V 
Achieved 
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S, FINANCIAL PERFO~MAI\ICE (AUPITEQ) 

As previouSly indic~ted the Branch remains In G' strong flriancJal po~itlon havTng traded at a sUrplus 
to original budget expectations. The kay statistics are shown below. 

a $urplli$ o~ opet~tions 

o Nett Eqt.dty 

o Cash Holding· 

$134,012.00 

$1,498',892 fepres~l)tlng a $134,012 itrtprQvement over 
2010-2011 

$1,435,15$ 

6 Total Empipynient Cost$ as o/o of Revenue .42.% (Target< 35%) 

o Liquidity Level 

o 0Qi9k. ~atio 

o Debtors Days 

o_ Meml:J~r$hip Income$; %;of 
Total Emp16Yr'nent Cpst 

o Training lncorne./Wages Ratio 

o Return on Earnings: 
l> Training · 
~ Global 
> R~taina:d Earnings 

480% (Target> 300%) 

9.4 Months {Target .> 3 months) 

1.~_8% (Ta)"get > 1.5%) 

36.2 Days. (Target<; 3-6 bays) 

6&% (Target> 70%) 

55% (Target> 30%) 

10.7% (au~;~get -,. 8%) 
3;54% (Budget> 3%) 
$1,435,000 (Target $1.2 Mil. mro.). 

·· •· · · · · ·-·- ~-- ---··· ·()atsid6"0fmlrmajor-operating-expensesrsuctras-Staff;-properly;-1tain ing-costs-arrdfunctions;·the-·-------·-· · · --·­
Branch, in k~eping With _the ~xpectations of the-CCF Nation_al Office of alf S~nches, again in 2011-
12, has provided a sl'gnificant leVSl offunc;llng to th~ GCF Nation-at Oftjqe. This cost represents 
some 160"' of the membership fee~ leVied foithe year. 

As shown in the table above, the Branch has substantial cash holdings which for seve·ral years 
hav~ bef;!n invest13_~, ip accordance with the Bran~h's inv~stment strqtegy, in a combfnaJion ()f . 
Cash term' Deposits and Maoa9ed Funds. Following the n:ild year (Dt)cem~~r ~011) te\tiew of 
thes.e itivestments, lhe Board determined that in light of the volatility In globalli:larkets, all reaelite~ 

· w6ukt be re-Invested In fixed term cash deposits With Australia's largest bahk1 Tlie Commonwealth 
San~ of Australia; T~is move was· taken to protect the retained member f1J11ds against the ongoing 
vo!CI!ility in global finallcia1 markets. 

Doring the course ofthe. year the Brahc.h, in line With CCF Natioti~l's r~qU"est; has moved to a new 
accounting package (EXOBIZ); this transition has been at SOme expense to the Branch but will in 
fi!lledetiver significantly improved financjal reporting capability. 

·&. MEMBER SERVICES 

Member service delivery over the year continued strongly thrOugh our Field Officers (OHS, 
Environmental and Traffic Management) together with over 60 l'l1elllber functions acrol?S all 

. gepgrajlhlcal ~reas of the Stat~~ The~e functioll$ Were supporft:!d by a steady tiow of it:~forrnCitiQn 
proVision via the CCF Enews and hartl copy Bulletin publications; these services will continue 
unchanged into the future. 
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While further work was undertaken on improving the CCF National WebSite, CCF VICtoria 
developed a sub website to further enhancf.! information provision to me·mQ~s. A ·new Initiative is 
tJ'r~ a..irr~n~ ~evelopme.nt pf a ~o9ile pho~e "appiJcatlon" to brJng CCF '1)1fo_rmatlon into ~he hands of 
f;lvery mernJ:>~r (wlth a COI'flpatibl~ phone); in a~~ition, this will me~q only two to~qhes on th.e phone 
sereeo tQ call CCF and/or gain informatic:m on training cours.t:ls, events and !~test CCF naws. 

bur member service provision Is also supported by the continuing strong relationships witli the 
fc;>llowing groups: 

• The CCF Pahelof Legal Providers 
• "Ridgeli~ HR 
.• Victoria's small Busiriass Commis.$ioner 
• The Water Industry Liaison Committee 
• The Ciliil Construction Alliance 
• Thf;l -~iyil Standards Qc-Ordinati9n. Group 

The E:3ranch has _pontlnued to work o.r'l enhancing relationships with stal(ehotder groups th;;it either 
ha\i.e a relationship With, or im&>act on, CCF Metnbets. These relationships are most important to 
achieving speedy representation of member issues and queries; whether it be an issue impacting a 
gro~ of members or an lnd!vfqualln essence, these relationships support the Board's _direction ()f 

~osuring CCF Viqtoria is ptitn~tily a seMce provider to its mem~rs. IIJ!embers of tt)is -&takeholder 
grou~ inClude but ;;~re not limited to: 

• Vic.~Qa~ 
• Institute of PL.iblic Works Engineering Australia 
• Association of lend be~lopment Engineers 
• U.~n Dev~loprrient ln·stiti.Jte of Australia 
~ Master Builders Association 
.. Department of Planilfng and Community bevi:ilopment 
• The Office of the SmalfBusiness Commissioner 
• tn~ We3ter ltidu~ry llaispn Committee 

----·~·-·--•~ctOna~ooL.QistrfbuloRt-N&twofk..Gommiu.ee..-~--·--~··--- --------·---·---
In re-&U'UctLJrtns the ~anc~, {t hC3s bee11 recagnjs~ tl)at our ·aranch facilities require improvement, 
and a~ such later in 2012 'the Branch will b!=l (el01~ating to a new property at 322 Glenferrie Road 
Malvern. Tbis. new faciUty provides us wfth double the curre.nt tr.ainini;i" facility; ease cf parking for 
those undertaking training and locates aD facilities on the one level. h is intended that a number .of 
m!3fl'lber functions will be held at t.he Bm.nph 9ffices r(!.ther th~n at extern~! lo~tions, as tu~s been 
l h'e oa.s~;fp~yJi:;usly .. 

Key Meiribei"shi,P Statistics 

1. Total \i'ic(orian Memi:Jership; ij78 
2. Total Metropolitan Membeis: 36.;3 
3. Total Regional Members: 31.5 
4. 1' of~! Associate Members: 1'36 
5. New Members 2,011112: 47 
e. MembersREWgned/Tenninated: 41 
7. RBQionat Meetings Held: 2.8 

7. AQVOCACY 

The Victorran Coalition GOvemment1 now in its second year, has continued with strong reductions 
in infrastructure constrUCtion and maintenance budgets thal either directly or indirectly are 
im~ Pn 1he secwr t!t ~lllev.els .. As a result, advoo.acy efforts have been largely Concentrated 
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QO ems~:~rtng aware~ss of Ule impaots to·the Industry iS heightened, provid.lng .Government with 
Opti()f)l? for ~dl!Oing fiQanclallmpacts Of lower WOrk opportunities, and helg~t.ening th.e awaref1~f?S 
of r~:undant and unnece~i'y red tape that is simply adding to the cost of do!ng busll'!e~-

The Board has been .actiVe In maintaining a number of Sub Cornmittees to influence tli.e various 
~~tor~ ~uch·:as'the Roads-and Bridges, Water and Infrastructure Maintenance sectors. As a result 
of th~ )N.Qr~ 4on~· by ~e Sub Commi~~s. a oumb~r of improvements to th~ r,esp~t:iiva -sectors 
has been achiev~. hQWever a considerablE! amount of worlt remains to b~ unae~ken to athleve 

·the deSired otrtcbi'ne$. 

Ana~er keya~pect of QW a~voca_cy progr~m has pe~o th~ contlm,JaflCE;l of ~fforts to introduce a 
'Training Criteria~ into c;hl'il con~truqtion project$ .• The int.ention·ls twofolc;l':.. in lnltfal!y el'}cour~if!g 
Stat& and LoQ.al Governments to look to rE!I$!!!S.ing a minim\.im two year~ Torward capital wo·rks 
program. to a Dow effectiVe workforce planning by tontracto~. 

Tl')e second aspect of tile initiative is to enc.ourageState .and Local Governments to require 
9QI1tll,l~OJS to IdentifY '{,\'Or1<:place training nee.QI?, relev!ln! to the, specific prpjec~; and t~~n to ens we 
that the traininQ ldentlfi~ takes place over the course of the proJ~cl 

The initial pilot project to develop the "Training Criteria" has recently been completed with sirong 
a(fcep(anc.e. by ~I! st(:!kehc;J~ers that the plio~ proces~ i!l f~ct Work$ w~ll. and deliver$ .lhe requtr~ 
Q!-ltcomes, What now rem~fns Is the advoc~y to Pr9niote the concept with Government agen~ies. 

Strong relationships alid ong_oirig dialogue has been maintained in the following a·r.eas: 

• The -\lictort!;lh Prelilier on the rising co~t of inf~structurer colistruetioo .aJ!d the ~ffe_cts of the 
Budget. 

.- M1nist.er for Local ~Qve.r,nmer,1t and herChl~f of Staff on forw~r~ work program~. reducing RE?d 
Tw>e in ~;ding with Lo¢_al Government~ the oaed for & whgle qf J_qqal Government Contractor 

i. 
! 
i 

Pr&-qualificatloo Program. . , 
. • Sf,ate Treasurer on·Jhe effe~s of the May 2012 State Budget and potential solutions to offset I 
~-· -....................... ~;;;:,=~lor.worr<sareori1rm proposecnntroerrtetiOnOfRarrriofitseaUASLeglslal:loii amr-~----··-·· .. ·----·. 

specifio OHS related issues. 
• Toe· Min~tedor Higher t;:ducatio:n ~n VEt Training Funtling (Gertifica~ tUIIIilV), .i)la "Tralnfng 

Crtteri~t l.nltlative. · · 
• l}te Mitiister for Plagni!lg on Developmen.~. Planning_ E~nd Major .ProJect Plannfng. 
• The PatliarhfHttary Seci'atary fpr Small Buslnas~ onlh13 cost Qf Re.g ta.pe ~() Small BU:;;ines:;>. 
• TQe ~~rJiamenlary -Secreta..Y for ·Tran~port on the impacts of t11e budgets1 the longer term 

etfe~ of r~u~d infras_tructure maiflt~a~ aJ1~ the ~ for a two to five year foJWard works 
probroo-t. 

• Various Regional and Metropotitan Members of Parliarr\eht to garnet sup~o.rt for the key issues 
baing ~dvo:cated, and Qn focaU~ed issues in t~e ~JJional environ~nent. . · 

;. The Sin~U Business Co.mml~SIQ®r on Secuiity of"Payril!IDts alicl ®fitraotual disputation. 
• The Metropo~an Retail Water Authorities on Issues Impacting contractors .. 
• Th.g histitute of Pubiic Woiks Eng.in~;~ering Australia on mi:ltters regarding te.nd.ering ~nd 

cotl'tTacts management within Local G<:>Vernmerit · 
• A variety of "H~~ds of _Department" for·Sf;atutory AUthorities an.;l stakehcilders on the· many 

top~s that lmp~t ~oJJtrattors on -~ d~1Y ba$is; 
• Ongoing Involvement and hosting of the Civil Construction Alliance 'Which continues "to -prOVide, 

un~er the chairmanship of former CEO Sob Seiffert, a direct conduit into the offices of key 
ad~~cy t~(get peoph;l. 

8. SKILLS AND TRAINING 

!~ skills ~rtag~ in the civH .construction sec~ will continue to be a sfgnifieant issue, particularly 
when the:eoononiic climate starts to turn around-and fnfra~uctur~ sp.ernfmg returns-IQ: moJ~ 
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normal levels. Subseqi.Jeiltly, the Branch has increased its actiVities in the area of workplace 
SU~tajmtbillty ~r}d engir')eering skills dE;lfiCiei'JCi~s by proJ11.0tiflg ~he skJJI~ ~riterf~ in GQn~tacts; and 
additional emph(!Sis ~as been pia~ed qn pr()moting Certificate II, Ill and IV CIVIl Construction. 

To sup-port these moves the Training "Scope" of Civil Train ViCtoria has b~n extended to include 
these new initiatives. Further work has been completed to intioduc$ a· ~Pre-Apprenticeship" training 
rnqdel; ti)is can alsp bg adjus~ed to provide a '1PrS-<:;lvil Emplqym~nt'' trai_Hing-package fpr those -
t~ansitiQning from_ other ind_usfry sectors to civiL Th_e aim ol' poth thes.e initiatives i$ ta provid~ 

-~tt~ndees with <:~, s·et of c·ote stsiUs to m~l<.e th~m mor& "employable" in the sector; once they have 
been employed, they are also bette·r equipped to follow on with their Cart III/IV trahiin·g. Given the 
significant move .of many "blue collar" civil employees to the mining and resources sectors over the 
past 12 months, tl!ese in._ltiatlves are s~e11 a.s essentla! to refill this looming resourc;~ uhole". 

In re-aligning CJvil Train t_q P~tter d~liv.er tr<;~il'ling neE!ds, a nom.:b~r:Of personn~l ch~nge~ have 
been undertaken to. strengthen training delivery, enhance the cjuality of course materials, and 
improve the profitability of Civil Train to fund Mure c.ourse development. The effects of these 
cha,ng~s are alre~dy being seen with ~he changes mentioned above. 

tJijr[I'!Q theye.~r. the Bciar'd estabiishe.d tlie N~:ltt Age Group to enable our wise but ~gihg members 
to stay connected and relevant, iri 6t'der to facilitate a level of industry meotoriilg available to 
younger members growing their businesses. Whilst this initiative is in Its fledgling stages; initial 
interest hqS qeen stronger t~an e)(pected, i'!rid l)owthat it i$ estrJblished, further work WUI ~e done 
to grow :tne group and advise to r~levant c,ornpt:!nies, the cap;:~biljJy of its m~mbers. 

The Alliance Engineering Technical Skills Committee (AETSC) set up In 201 0•11 to support the 
Bid for a Training Criteria In Contracts, has been restructured to provide Civil Tr(lin Vict()ria with a 
tepnnic~l ~kill~ advisory pai')eL The Panel, cl:taired by Boa.rd Member Alex Lukac, Is focused on 
identityln9 <:!rid pripriij~ing skills deVelopment needs' in fhe industry ahd hence providing c(irectlpn to 
Civil Train on co.urse development arid/or improvements to oetter servij the industry. 

Key st<l_tlstics for the Civil Tr9i~ Victoria b~siness are: 

··--·-·-----·..-·--Evemvlttr-changes-to-6o,emmentiegistatiorr,'the-htimber-oftraining-courses-deliverectwere·- ······- -·------ - ··· 
comparable with the previous year (282),With (287) courses. delivered. 

• Numbers of attendees were down from the previous year with an average of (11) participants 
per course, compared to (12;6)th& pre.vious year. 

• A pre~employment'prpgra.m fat person.$ interested in working within tne. Civil Construction 
illdtl'sby wa~ introdur;.e.d thitM,.Jghout 2011-12 with (8) programs being i;lefivered, With an 
average_ of (12) p;:Jrticlpan($. This program pmvided tiJe.participants·with ·i:l9etof skUis th~t 
wouid uttlmateiy lead toemptoymeritWit~in tft~ indu~try. 

• Piant Operator -Assessrnertt Certific~;ttion increased with (763) Green Cards and ( 1 088) NoiJ 
P~nt Cards, giving~ total. of (1851) Plant Operator ti~ke~s ls$1Jed. An increase ol (13.4o/o) on 
the previous year. 

9. CCF VICTORIAN A\ft/AR[)S 

In ~tognition of ol!tslanding ~~!'Vice to the CCF, and the indli~>try a::> a whole, each year CGF 
Victoria presents the Ken Edgley Medal to either or both, an ini:lil#idLial and/or a corporate member. 
These Awards are presented each year at the President's Luncheon held in November. For 2011, 
the Kef1 I;dgley Awarq Wirners wer~~ 

-. Individual Award to: John Plumridge; MawCivirPIL 
• Company AWard to; Delpl;:_mt P!l · 
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CCF also pte.sents a range of Training AWartJs In recognltlon of outstanding achievement in the 
quesffor qUalifiCations. The Training AWards. are presented across both Apprentice and TertiarY 
training areas; fn 2011 the Training Awards were presented to: 

• Ge.off Browo Award 1 
• Geoff.Brown Award .2 
• G¢off Brown Aw~rd. 3 
• fan Jacka Award ..•. . · . ,. .. . .. 
• CIVil Contractors Federation Pri.z~ 

The CCF National Earth Awards 

Aiden Ward ofCUnt Kelly Excavations 
D;:~n~l Morg;;Jn of N.ibbs Contr?tctors 
James Broughton qf B.airnsdale Road Seivi®s 
Brc:rqen Leiner of Card no Grogan Richards 
Felicity' St~wart 

The Vlctori;:ln aspect of these N;;ttionai Awards was once .~gain a significant success-for the 
B~:ancli, with 1 a entries across 5 Awards categories. At a spectacular dinner on 18th Augu.st 2011, 
VIctOrian Earth Awards were presented to the following organisations: 

.Category Categury Winner Project Title 
Category 1 Drapers Cillil Pty Ltd Gtintar W~tlands· and StonnWater 

HaiVesting Project 
;Category 2 Pipelh1~S Alliance Rhteria. Outlet Project 
Catego·ry3 Cut.& Fill Pty Ltd Geprga stBiidge·oandenong 
Category4 McConnell Dowell Barwon Heads Bridge 
Oatego.ry5 John Hollc:rndNicRoads WestGate Bridge Strengthening Project 

10. SPONSORSHIP 

A !)rgnffi.c<;~_ht c·omponent qfsupport to CCFVI¢tori!l co:mes dfJectly from the Assocta.te rn.emb!;}r 
base: this ~upport.vari~ frotn dir~t sponsorship of events and fi..ihcti<lhs to providing individlial 
member support in particular areas of specialisation. . ; 

I 
ihtJ.> year saw a ve{Y high l~.vel of bpth di(ect and ''.in. kinq'1 supp9rt to CCF and lts' lll!=ni~n~. Whilst I 

--···· .. ·---·-·······it ls diffiCUitlo g!J~nl!&!®.il\~il}!! as~ct of supJ~ort, it shQufd be noted th~t the direct sup_Ror! via __ ... _ .......... ..... ..... ! 
sponsorship of events and functions exceeded $230,000.00. Our band of sponsors and supp.orters : 
grows with each year, and it is pleasing to receive feedback that members greatly respeot the work 
done and fhe support given by our Associate members. 

In the. frst half of 2012--13, CCF will appoint a dedfcate.d pe~oii to flirthefbuild and maintain 
relationships with sppnsors, with a viev.tta identifying new initiatives to QrOw the Associate member 
ba~e ;;md enable greater levels of direct and in kind -support to the memberf?nip that are yet to be 
realis~d. 

11. CONTRACTOR MANAGEMENT SYSTt:MS PROGRAM 

The CMS Progrqm contifl~s to be t11~ mo~t accepted ~olution in the indUstiY for Contra~or 
Management Sy$tem~. l.o ~~i~cm, the number of client groups ~CM11ising the :systems and tt.l~ir 
certifk~tion has ir;qreased, anq llQW includes Qll _hlajorWatet Authorities, Local Gpve,mment 
entities, and State Authorities. 

The program this ,yeq_r ha~:; enpourCiged ~ 8 .contra<::to.rs to seek 1:11embership of CCF and the 
influence ·of the rncijor client groups is continuing to driv~ ~oth ~e growth of membership and 
system $aies. 

The level of Systems Certification remains steady; however, a number of .our largii!r members are 
elevating theti· certification l~vel~ to embrC~oe At1stralt9n and lnternafionaJ S.ta!\dards. 

In a key initiative, the Contractor Management Systems Business Unit will be moVing back into the 
Victorian Office oh lld July 2012, after a two year period at the National Office. This mo-ve has 
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bE!en made_as ~result of the rec;ognition th~tth~ t~rge majority of oontractors involvect in ~e 
ptogrcun. ate Victotian. 

Further development ahd .erih~mcement of the ,Systems Templates, together with the streamlining 
of the administrative components of the Program's operation; are planned for the first half of 2012~ 
1~ . 

The key ;:tSpect of these chan~es isto ensure the operation of the systems is kept in JineWith 
current technologies and systems requirements. 

12. JNOUSTRII-\L RELATIONS· HUMAN RESOURCES 

As,has b~n the case f(lr tM past d~cade, this last year has ~een q number of significant 
developments hi the field of workplace relations and human resour'ees management generally. 

Some of the more sig_nificant oftnase developments are: 

• The abolition of the Office of the Australian Building and Construction Commissioner and the 
transitiorlo a new special division of the Office of~~ Fai'r Wqrk Otnl;:ludsroan called "Fair Work 
Building ~nd Constr~tion" with some modific~tlon .of powers, but mainly perfo.rmin9 the sa{Tle 
primary funmion oftegul~ting workplace relations complianc~ in the Indu~try. 

• The continued focus on sham contracting and Increased levels of .collaboration between 
government agencie~ like Fair \Nod~ Building and Qonstruction, the Australian TCJxation. Office, 
the AustrC!IIan Securities anc.j lt.westments Commission an(:! the Department of Immigration ~nd 
Citizenship. · 

• New uriion erit~rprise-agreement mpdels with substantial in<;:reases in wages and conditio f)~ 
ne'Qoti!lt~ by J . .tnions With MBAV and NECA but n(Jt endorsed by CCF. 

• From 1 July 2011 employers have had responsibility for Parental Leave payments urider the 
Paid Parental leave Act 2010 and liaison with Centrelink in relation to those payments. 

13. OCCUPATIONAL J-IEALTH AND SAFETY 

"lffe Sraficffnas again this year enJoyeCJ'ffie signlficaiitaavantage Offelaining eXternal funi:fing tor~·~---·-··--- · 
the Fael~ OJficer OHS role frorolncqlink. This important role has ·deliver® a ntJmber of initia~ves to 
dlrectJy SIJPPot:i m.ernbers, and represe.nt the Interests .of h)~mbers, at relevant He~lth and Sa~ 
forums. M.t.ich of the work unde.rtaken in this role is in direct r.~ponsa to ~tnber queries and 
requests for advice on particular is::;ues. 

During ttfe first h~tf of 2011-12, ·a particular emphasis was placed on_ alerting members to the 
13~pect~ ch~;~ng~:is from tl)ra proposed introdu.ctioil of the Na.tionaUy.Harmonlsed OHS l~gistatloo 
that the Victorian Government ultimately refused to implement as originally planned on 1st January 
2012. During this period, the Victorian Field Officar spent considerable time assisting the CCF 
National Office with interpretation and advice on practical amendment to the draft documentation. 

In acklltloti, tliis tol.13 furthe:r ~ssisted members in the provision of OHS constiltancies to small 
busiriesses with fewer than ;w emplayee.s. This prtlgram, WhiCh iS strongly supported by WorkSafe 
Victoria, enabled us to deliver 30 ofthese consuitarieies during the year: 

14. ENVIRONMENTAL 

Similar tcnhe OHS Officer role, the Fiekl Officer Emril'oili'\lent pP5itioi1 is fully funded by EPA 
Victoria. This partnership has been instrumental iri assisting members understand the nuanees .of 
working with contaminated fill and a!so provides a resource to actvise members directly on matters 
of appropriate env:iroom~ntal managern~nt. . . . 

Two key tnitiatiVas were delivered dwing the year; the first being the t:o-:developrrient With EPA of 
new guidelines for managing contaminated fills. This program alSo required the broad 
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.. 

dis$emination of infqrmation to eontractors via a series of Awareness Forums, a number of these 
wer~ :held ~u"rlng the period, each of wni9h w~s a strong suc6ess. ' 

Tlie seco.lid initiative wa·s tl:1at pf the finalisation of ;:~ Guideline for Machine Hygiene. and the 
development of an ''E Learning_" training session for employees of contractors. This. initiative was 
partially fun~ed by the Department of Primary lndul?try <md ~as seen strong usage by members, 
particularly those wot~i!ig in fqrest~d: or park enVironments. Trte program has ga,ii)~ stron_g 
support from environmental ahd regulatol)t bodies in m~ny States .. 

·15. WORKFORCE SUTAINABILITY 

ihe role of the Workforce SustainabYity Project Officer has continued over the year with much of 
the focus !Jeing 'to support the Training ·criteri~ pr9je~t <:~nc:J fb~ re-establishment of the Alliance 
Technical $~ill~ Steering Committee into ~ more focused Civil Tr~in n~chnical Advisory CQmmifte~ 
(refer to tbe Sl<ill~ arid TrafninQ $ragment of this report). 

Other rriitia~1ves <:JOhieved through thi~ role include: 

• Secured an .additional $50,000 from Melbo:Urne Water to. be invest~d in the Water S~nsitive 
Urban Design (WSUD) Training Criteria Pilot, developed in conji.lnclioh with the Careers 
Officeri the fnitiSltive tq proviq~ members with direct assistance with skills need analysis and 
linking these requirements to the {ed~rally funde·d Worl<force Skills pevelopment F'rpgr~m.. 

• Work with Civil Train Victoria to expand tbe number of seiitice. providers for the delivery of 
Certificate IV ih Civil Construction. · 

• Fa,cili~ted the comrnenc~ment. of a Proof of Conc~pt Pilot for theTrc:dni!19 Crlteda PrQject; tne 
initial project is being canstructed by member comp~ny Unit~ Roads PtY l.,td. 

• Established tne Next,Age Group for m~mbers and others in the indusw that ar~ transitioning 
into retirE~ment, to mai.ntain th:eir link~ wit!l the industry anq provjqe ~uppqrt to Civil Contractors. 

• Facilitated a riumber of seiniriars to assist women who work beside their husbands in the 
administrative areas of their respective businesses. 

16. CAREERS DEVI:LOPMEl\IT 
·-------------~---------····--···---···-·· 

The dire~tions of tlie Careers Development Program have been wen t:nJtint~ined, the activities 
undertaken include:· · ·. 

• Development of ah e>¢e!i$ive car.eers prom.9.tioh P.rogrplti l)~ing pr~sente<;J .tp oVer (40) Gar~ers 
Expos, to heighten ~awareness. of careers in the inqu.strY to ovet 150;000 st!Jdents. te.a.chets 
and parentS who attend the expos. 

• Working with CCF m~rnQeJ:s to link enterprises with A.ustrallan Government-training initi~tive$; 
rec<>gnlsing the Importance oflnves.th1g In their people to meet current aod future wotktorce 
needs. Up-skilling their workforce now and over the next (5) yeats through the National 
Workforce Development Plan. · 

• VET in School~ Prog·r;:~m: has begun in the sto.Gippsland ~re~~. with (1.5) students 
commencing In 2012, a first for the Industry. · 

• The promotion o~ ~ool Bpsed Apprenticeship Programs at secondary schools commenced 
and cqn.t{n~~d to grow, 

~ lh 2012 the eMphasis of this rol.e h·as been changed to provide more of a "Tr~de Focus" 
(Certificate III/IV), and accordingly; netWorks have been developed with ci:mstrliction industry 
associaticms such as, l\i1,!3A.ABBTF •. lncolink. Glaziers _etc. to a~sistthe CCF increase this 
focus for th.e Civil Constructiottlndu?try. 

• The Fafesite PrPQram, a Graduate Engineerii'l9 Program, which was developed in 2010. Was 
implemented again in 2'011 with (13) students being plaeed with CCF contractOr membeits for 
worK ~~denct). · 
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11.1NCQLINK FUNDING SUPPORT 

TheQlvil construction ind1,1stry m~i<.es slgnlf!ci;lnt c·ontrlbu.tions to lncolink on beh~lf of its 
employee.s. CCF, overth~ last sJ)!:yeara, has accessed lncolink grants which ~re invaluab_l!:!-in 
covering the cost of resources to provide seivices to members. 

II'\ f:tte 2011-12 y~ar, CCF w~s f~rtun_a~e t9 haveth.efoll.pwing ro_les fuUy fund~~ fr.om fncolh:1k: 

• Careers Information Field Officer 
• c;viJ Construction TrE:~ffic Man~gement Fi~ld Officer 
• Workforce Sustainabllity Project Offieer; and 
• OJ-l&S Fie(d ~cer · · 

Re{jt.ettably_, and as a direct result of the .doWntutn in j:jlobal stock markets, two of these toles will 
not be. funded into 2012-13; CCF has, In recognition of the lmportance of these roles, been able ta 
allocate funqs t9 .CQ!'ltinue fh~ role~ li$.tec;l above, with the ~x~eption of ttte \JYoJidorGe S!.Jstainability 
Proj~ct Offiper rote, which Will be. res~ructured ~r)d ~bsorl:iecj into other r:oles in t.-.e l;>usfness. 

18. ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

Cootif\UOL!S lmprovemenl jn t~e orgar(is~tiqn's processes ·has been a focus of the Branch's 
restructure. 

Key aohievements for the 2011-12yoor Include: 

~ FinalisatiQn c;f Jhe impletn~tif~tlon of th~ ne.w Nation~ I EXOBiZAcco.unting Sy~t~m 
• Higher level training of staffin Student Database Sy~tems~ Australian Quality Training 

Frarneworl< (AQTF) pro-c~sses an~ the Natlonal Training System 
• Implementation of a number of'a:spects of the Staff Training Needs Analysis 
• A paftlal r~vtew and ~me11dm~nt of the Civil Train Policy Ma.nual 
• St.icoossful full systems eert)fication audit of the Branch's ISO 9001 Quality S~tern. 

..... ~~.bueviaW 9f the Branctr~ Bilik Mao;agement Plan -·---·-··-··-·-----·--·· -·--------- -··-· 
• lmpiementa.tion of the IT Str&t~ j 
• Review of prEt-exlsting arrangements for lfle provision of workplace relations services 
-• ·A reVieW and raUonalisatio"r1 of all consul~ncy services prQvic;leq tp the B~nch 
• Implementation of a mechanised telephone/reception system 
• R~view ~nd uJ;ldating of ~n: key staff po$iijon ~ascriptions and e_mployment contracts 

The continuous impto~ement of the organisation wnt be a key focus In the comin,g Year, with a 
n_umb~r of proqe$ses and poll~ies being identified as needill.Q progressive review and 
r~~onali~_ll•l• 

18. THE FUTURE 

The Sral)ch is now in the early consolidation stage ·following the restructure, and as -such wtlilst 
ti1il~ Work haS bMfi ·d(me, th~re r.~tna!~ a consider~ble. t>ody of Work fo l:;)e_ lf9Uipie\ect dl,l~jng the 
next 12 months to tailfigute the organl~affon fot the longer term, ~s the p~minent. ~ic'e 
provider for the civY Industry. · 

The ou~l.~ndlng wo* lnc;rude-s, but is not-lifrited to, the following acfivifi~s: 

• Continue to. irnjlrbve the governance and transpatency of .busineSs operatlcms-
• OQr.itinueto assist members ,tin~ .reducet~fi.nancial impos~ ¢ dolng ~sin~s:on confracto.rs 
• COntinue to work With stakeholder groups to streamline contre.ctor engagement techniq~ 
• l\lllO\in~ain and grow our high profile in r~ard to our advocacy and representations activities 
• Further Improve our' branding · · · · · 

11 



• FL!rther develpp 111e CCF St~te, Conf~r~n<;:e and Investigate the opport1.1nity to int~gr?te it with 
the confEm;Jn~s ~;>ftelated as'Sociat(ons 

• Finalise the Training Criteria Pil{>t Projects, and demonstrate the 'Worthiness" of the concept to 
Sta.te and Local Government organisations 

• Assist members to respond to new legisl~tiVe req'tJi~ment$ as they may arise 
•. Provide members with a set .of QJ.Jidance tools to assist in the manag~ment of the effects of 

Or'LJg~ and f\lqohol in t~e wprkpla~c.e 
• Further enhance communications to membe(s 
• Increase Fee for Service revenue ba~e and margin 
• Further irifl~ence clients to onlY engooe ~ystems certified c.ontrc;~ctors 
• Continue the development of tools for members in relation to dealing with health and safet~', and 

manag'ing th~ environm<?~ . 
• Continue to be .vigilant to ensure that out goverha.nce, risk management, strategic planning ;2nd 

administrative functions meet contemporary best pr.actice 
• Complete the cu.ltt,mal transition of the bW?Iness 
' SLiccessfully transition the busineSS lilto the new premises 
• Achieve additional fundit1g gr!'lnts to bC!ckfill thqse c:;e~sing to be ~v~Hable to CCF 
• Ccintinue to .establish forums and committee structures that ensure that:contractor issues are 

identified and challenges addressed 
• Review tJw training course cost l)tructure and rep·ort ~ppropriate strategie~ to tflEl. Board, td 

ensure delivery of a surplus to support future. deVelopment in this .business u.nit. 

Your CCFVictorian Branch has completed a:financially successful2011-'12 financial year; in 
the face of a number of chall~nge~.Wit~ the change mec;h~misms already cpmp!eted; or in 
plan, the Branch faces a brightet, strongf?r M!-lr~ With a clear cultl,lfe of providing core 
se:rvice5 to members in a timely eir'ld profe·!>.sional manner. 

In .representing your CCF Victorian Board and Branch Staff, we appr~iate your ongoing 
.~upporl: of the CCF and the strateg{c directions the Branch is undertaking. 

I 

~~ 
--·-·-·-··-~-~- ... -~ .. ··--·· '1 - ---- · .-...--. ..... -~-----·...-·--..-.... ....-~--·--~-,.. ...... -...., .. _..... . ..._ ___ ..,.,....._, -.- ..... _.... .... ~ ...... _.__._..,...,.....~.- ... --... 

Andrew Mahar 
.B.rancn Pre~idef!t 

John Stewart 
Chief Exec.utive Officer 
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From: John Stewart
To: PFEIFFER, Robert
Subject: Non Lodgement of Documents
Date: Thursday, 24 January 2013 11:26:49 AM

Good morning Robert, further to  my telephone message, I wish to  apologise for the relevant documents not being forwarded
to  you within the required timeframe, the fault is ours and arises from a transition of responsibilities between two employees
last October, the documents were in fact prepared ready for forwarding, however the actual posting of the documents was
overlooked.
 

The required documents have been posted to  you yesterday (23rd January).
 
Regards
 
 
 

JOHN STEWART
Chief Executive Officer

CCF VICTORIA BRANCH
ABN 97 341 352 156
Level 1/ 322 Glenferrie Road Malvern VIC 3144

M 0439 800 446 P (03) 9822 0900 F (03) 9822 0022
E jstewart@civilcontractors.com
www.civilcontractors.com

 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail  

Please note: The information contained in this correspondence may be confidential and is intended only for the person to whom it is addressed. It may contain information or
advice of a legal, professional, public  interest or otherwise privileged nature. If  you are not the intended recipient any review, copying, transmission, dissemination or any
other use is unauthorised. If  you have received this correspondence or message in error please contact the sender immediately and delete the material from your computer.

 

mailto:jstewart@civilcontractors.com
mailto:Robert.PFEIFFER@fwc.gov.au
http://www.civilcontractors.com/
mailto:jstewart@civilcontractors.com
http://www.civilcontractors.com/


From: PFEIFFER, Robert
To: "ccfvic@civilcontractors.com"
Subject: To Mr John Stewart, CEO
Date: Tuesday, 22 January 2013 4:16:45 PM
Attachments: CCF-Vic 7.4.pdf

Dear Mr Stewart,
 
Please see attached letter.
 
Regards,
 
ROBERT PFEIFFER
Senior Adviser
Regulatory Compliance Branch
 
Fair Work Commission
Tel: 03 8661 7936
Fax: 03 9655 0410
robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au
 
11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001
 
www.fwc.gov.au
 

mailto:/O=AIR/OU=VIC01/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=PFEIFFER
mailto:ccfvic@civilcontractors.com
file:////airvicsrv01/userhome$/pfeiffer/My%20Documents/signature.docx
http://www.fwa.gov.au/



11 Exhibition Street 


Melbourne VIC 3000 


GPO Box 1994 


Melbourne VIC 3001    


Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 


Facsimile: (03) 9655 0410 


Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 


 


22 January 2013 


Mr John Stewart 


Chief Executive Officer 


Civil Contractors Federation 


Victorian Branch 


 


Sent by email:  ccfvic@civilcontractors.com  
 


 


Dear Mr Stewart, 


 


Failure to lodge audited financial report - [FR2012/312] 


Our records indicate that the Victorian Branch of the Civil Contractors Federation (the reporting 


unit) has failed to lodge its audited financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 


despite Fair Work Australia (as it was) reminding the reporting unit of its obligation to do so by 


letter addressed to Mr Seiffert, CEO, on 6 August 2012.  


The reporting unit was advised on 6 August 2012 that section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) requires reporting units to lodge an audited financial report 


with the Fair Work Commission within a maximum of 6 months and 14 days of the end of their 


financial year (that is, no later than 14 January 2013).   


Paragraph 7.4 of the FWC Regulatory Compliance Policy (a copy of which is attached) states as 


follows: 


7.4 Where the possible contravention involves failure by an organisation, branch or reporting 


unit to lodge a matter with FWC in accordance with the timeframes specified in the 


RO Act, RO Regulations or the rules of the organisation, branch or reporting unit: 


a. The Regulatory Compliance Branch will contact the organisation, branch or reporting 


unit, by telephone and/or in writing, within two weeks to advise that lodgement is 


overdue; 


b. If lodgement has not occurred within one month of the timeframe specified in the 


RO Act, RO Regulations or rules, the Regulatory Compliance Branch will advise the 


organisation, branch or reporting unit that it is seeking voluntary compliance within a 


specified timeframe and that, in the absence of such voluntary compliance without 


cause, FWC will commence an inquiry or investigation or initiate court proceedings; 


and 


c. If lodgement has not occurred within the timeframe specified in the correspondence 


referred to in paragraph b and the organisation, branch or reporting unit has not been 


able to show cause regarding why it should not do so, FWC will commence an inquiry 


or investigation or initiate court proceedings in accordance with this policy as soon as 


reasonably practicable. 



mailto:ccfvic@civilcontractors.com





11 Exhibition Street 


Melbourne VIC 3000 


GPO Box 1994 


Melbourne VIC 3001    


Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 


Facsimile: (03) 9655 0410 


Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 


 


 


Section 331 of the RO Act empowers the General Manager of the Fair Work Commission to 


investigate compliance by a reporting unit (such as the Victorian Branch of the Civil Contractors 


Federation), its officers, employees and auditor(s) with: 


 Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act;  


 the reporting guidelines made under that Part;  


 the regulations made for the purposes of that Part;  


 the Civil Contractors Federation rules regarding finances and financial administration; and 


 civil penalty provisions of the RO Act (see s.305). 


In accordance with the processes specified in paragraph 7.4(b) of the FWC Regulatory 


Compliance Policy which are set out above, the reporting unit is required to lodge its outstanding 


audited financial report with the Fair Work Commission by no later than 14 February 2013. 


Should the reporting unit fail to do so without reasonable cause, the Fair Work Commission may 


commence an investigation under s.331 of the RO Act without further notice. 


Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or 


via email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au.   


Yours sincerely, 


 


Robert Pfeiffer 


Senior Adviser 


Regulatory Compliance Branch 
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11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001    

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
Facsimile: (03) 9655 0410 

Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 

 

22 January 2013 

Mr John Stewart 
Chief Executive Officer 
Civil Contractors Federation 
Victorian Branch 
 
Sent by email:  ccfvic@civilcontractors.com  
 
 

Dear Mr Stewart, 

 

Failure to lodge audited financial report - [FR2012/312] 

Our records indicate that the Victorian Branch of the Civil Contractors Federation (the reporting 
unit) has failed to lodge its audited financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 
despite Fair Work Australia (as it was) reminding the reporting unit of its obligation to do so by 
letter addressed to Mr Seiffert, CEO, on 6 August 2012.  

The reporting unit was advised on 6 August 2012 that section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered 

Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) requires reporting units to lodge an audited financial report 
with the Fair Work Commission within a maximum of 6 months and 14 days of the end of their 
financial year (that is, no later than 14 January 2013).   

Paragraph 7.4 of the FWC Regulatory Compliance Policy (a copy of which is attached) states as 
follows: 

7.4 Where the possible contravention involves failure by an organisation, branch or reporting 

unit to lodge a matter with FWC in accordance with the timeframes specified in the 

RO Act, RO Regulations or the rules of the organisation, branch or reporting unit: 

a. The Regulatory Compliance Branch will contact the organisation, branch or reporting 

unit, by telephone and/or in writing, within two weeks to advise that lodgement is 

overdue; 

b. If lodgement has not occurred within one month of the timeframe specified in the 

RO Act, RO Regulations or rules, the Regulatory Compliance Branch will advise the 

organisation, branch or reporting unit that it is seeking voluntary compliance within a 

specified timeframe and that, in the absence of such voluntary compliance without 

cause, FWC will commence an inquiry or investigation or initiate court proceedings; 

and 

c. If lodgement has not occurred within the timeframe specified in the correspondence 

referred to in paragraph b and the organisation, branch or reporting unit has not been 

able to show cause regarding why it should not do so, FWC will commence an inquiry 

or investigation or initiate court proceedings in accordance with this policy as soon as 

reasonably practicable. 

mailto:ccfvic@civilcontractors.com


11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001    

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777 
Facsimile: (03) 9655 0410 

Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 

 

 

Section 331 of the RO Act empowers the General Manager of the Fair Work Commission to 
investigate compliance by a reporting unit (such as the Victorian Branch of the Civil Contractors 
Federation), its officers, employees and auditor(s) with: 

 Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the RO Act;  
 the reporting guidelines made under that Part;  
 the regulations made for the purposes of that Part;  
 the Civil Contractors Federation rules regarding finances and financial administration; and 
 civil penalty provisions of the RO Act (see s.305). 

In accordance with the processes specified in paragraph 7.4(b) of the FWC Regulatory 

Compliance Policy which are set out above, the reporting unit is required to lodge its outstanding 
audited financial report with the Fair Work Commission by no later than 14 February 2013. 

Should the reporting unit fail to do so without reasonable cause, the Fair Work Commission may 
commence an investigation under s.331 of the RO Act without further notice. 

Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or 
via email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au.   

Yours sincerely, 

 

Robert Pfeiffer 
Senior Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 
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